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FINANCE, BUDGET AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
APRIL 17, 2019
SUBJECT: BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND COMPONENT AUDITS
ACTION: RECEIVE AND FILE

RECOMMENDATION

RECEIVE AND FILE the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority’s (Metro) basic
financial statements and component financial statement audits completed by Crowe Horwath LLP
(Crowe) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

ISSUE

Metro is required to be audited annually by independent certified public accountants. The resulting
reports include Metro’s basic financial statements and following component audits for the year ended
June 30, 2018:

» Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Los Angeles County Metropolitan
Transportation Authority for the year ended June 30, 2018;

> Independent Auditor’'s SAS 114 letter covering required communications; Los Angeles County
Metropolitan Transportation Authority Single Audit Report for fiscal year ended June 30, 2018;

» Independent Accountant’s Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures on the Los Angeles
County Metropolitan Transportation Authority’s Federal Funding Allocation Data for the
Transportation Operating Agency (ID# 90154) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018;

» Independent Accountant’s Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures National Transit
Database Financial Data Procedures by the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation
Authority for the Transportation Operating Agency (ID# 90154) for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2018;

» Independent Auditor’'s Report on Compliance with the California Code of Regulations (Section
6667); Report on Internal Control over Compliance; and Report on 50% Expenditure Limitation
Schedule for the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority Transportation
Development Act Operations Agency for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018;

> Independent Auditor’'s Report on Compliance with the California Code of Regulations
(Sections 6640-6662); Report on Internal Control over Compliance; and Report on Schedule
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for the Los Angeles County
Metropolitan Transportation Authority Transportation Development Act & Prop 1B PTMISEA
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Planning Agency for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018;

> Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
State Transit Assistance Special Revenue Fund’s basic financial statements as of and for the
years ended June 30, 2017 and 2018;

> Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Crenshaw Project Corporation (A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority) basic financial statements as of
June 30, 2018;

» Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies (A
Component Unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority) financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2018; and

» Independent Auditor’'s Report on Compliance with Rules and Regulations of the Low Carbon
Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) and Report on Internal Control over Compliance for the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority’s compliance with the LCTOP
Guidelines for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

DISCUSSION

Metro’s basic financial statements include our audited financial statements, supplemental information
and unmodified audit opinion from independent external auditor, Crowe. The independent auditor,
Crowe, issued unmodified opinions on all audit reports for FY18. Unmodified opinion means that all
financial statements for FY18 were fairly presented and that Metro complied in all material respects
with the applicable financial reporting framework and compliance requirements respectively.
However, in the Single Audit Report, Crowe noted one significant deficiency in our internal control
over compliance with major federal programs pertaining to sub-recipient monitoring of federal
awards. Specifically, City of Pasadena self-certified that it did not meet the threshold requirement for
a single audit. Metro is required to verify that each pass-through sub-recipient entities is audited if
required by the single audit requirements. Instead of relying on the sub-recipient’s self-certification,
Metro’s Grants Management will implement preventative controls by clarifying to sub recipients that
in completing their annual self-certification, the response applies to the entire entity federal awards
and not just the particular grant. Additionally, Grants Management will verify the sub-recipients’
responses using the search on Federal Audit Clearinghouse to ensure that no single audit is required
for the sub-recipients.

Due to the considerable size of the document, we have not attached Metro’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report. Instead, as a savings measure a hard copy of the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report is on file with the Board Secretary and is also available on the Metro website.

<https://media.metro.net/about us/finance/images/fy18 cafr.pdf>

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A - SAS 114 letter covering required communications;

Attachment B - Single Audit Report for fiscal year ended June 30, 2018;

Attachment C - Federal Funding Allocation Data for the Transportation Operating
Agency (ID# 90154) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018;

Attachment D - National Transit Database Financial Data Procedures by the Los
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Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority for the Transportation
Operating Agency (ID# 90154) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018;
Attachment E - Transportation Development Act Operations Agency for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2018;
Attachment F - Transportation Development Act & Prop 1B PTMISEA Planning Agency
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018;
Attachment G - State Transit Assistance Special Revenue Fund’s basic financial
statements as of and for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2018;
Attachment H - Crenshaw Project Corporation (A Component Unit of the Los Angeles
County Metropolitan Transportation Authority) basic financial
statements as of June 30, 2018;
Attachment | - Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies (A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority) financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2018;
Attachment J - Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) and Report on
Internal Control over Compliance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018

Prepared by: Lauren Choi, Sr. Manager, Audit
(213) 922-3926
Monica Del Toro, Audit Support Manager
(213) 922-7494

Reviewed by: Diana Estrada, Chief Auditor
(213) 922-2161

Rl

Phillip A. Washington \
Chief Executive Officer '
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Attachment A

Crowe LLP
Independent Member Crowe Global

December 19, 2018

Board of Directors
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Los Angeles, California

Professional standards require that we communicate certain matters to keep you adequately informed
about matters related to the financial statement audit that are, in our professional judgment, significant and
relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. We communicate such
matters in this report.

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITY UNDER AUDITING STANDARDS GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

Our responsibility is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been
prepared by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The audit of the financial
statements does not relieve you of your responsibilities and does not relieve management of their
responsibilities. Refer to our engagement letter with LACMTA for further information on the responsibilities
of management and of Crowe LLP.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY UNDER GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether LACMTA'’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of LACMTA’s compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts or disclosures. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion.

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

PLANNED SCOPE AND TIMING OF THE AUDIT

We are to communicate an overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit. Accordingly, the following
matters regarding the planned scope and timing of the audit were discussed with you.

e How we proposed to address the significant risks of material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

e Our approach to internal control relevant to the audit.

e The concept of materiality in planning and executing the audit, focusing on the factors
considered rather than on specific thresholds or amounts.
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e Where the entity has an internal audit function, the extent to which the auditor will use the work
of internal audit, and how the external and internal auditors can best work together.

e Your views and knowledge of matters you consider warrant our attention during the audit, as
well as your views on:

o0 The allocation of responsibilities between you and management.

0 The entity's objectives and strategies, and the related business risks that may result in
material misstatements.

o Significant communications with regulators.
o Other matters you believe are relevant to the audit of the financial statements.
e Matters relative to the use of other auditors/other accountants during the audit:
0 An overview of the type of work to be performed by other auditors/other accountants.

o The basis for the decision to make reference to the audit of the other auditor in our
report on the entity’s financial statements.

0 An overview of the nature of our planned involvement in the work to be performed by
the other auditor/other accountant.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND MANAGEMENT JUDGMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES

Significant Accounting Policies: Those Charged with Governance should be informed of the initial selection
of and changes in significant accounting policies or their application. Also, Those Charged with Governance
should be aware of methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and the effect of significant
accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas where there is a lack of authoritative consensus. We
believe management has the primary responsibility to inform Those Charged with Governance about such
matters. To assist Those Charged with Governance in its oversight role, we also provide the following.

Accounting Standard Impact of Adoption
GASB Statement No. 75, “Accounting and Upon adoption of this Statement, LACMTA
Financial Reporting for Postemployment restated business-type activities net position as
Benefits other than Pensions.” of July 1, 2017 by $956,045,000.

The primary objective of this Statement is to
improve accounting and financial reporting by
state and local governments for postemployment
benefits other than pensions (other
postemployment benefits or OPEB). It also
improves information provided by state and local
governmental employers about financial support
for OPEB that is provided by other entities.
Significant Unusual Transactions. No such matters noted.
Significant Accounting Policies in No such matters noted.
Controversial or Emerging Areas.

Management Judgments and Accounting Estimates: Further, accounting estimates are an integral part of
the financial statements prepared by management and are based upon management’s current judgments.
These judgments are based upon knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance
and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s
current judgments and may be subject to significant change in the near term.

The following describes the significant accounting estimates reflected in LACMTA'’s year end financial
statements, the process used by management in formulating these particularly sensitive accounting
estimates and the primary basis for our conclusions regarding the reasonableness of those estimates.



Significant Accounting
Estimate

Process Used by Management

Basis for Our Conclusions

Fair Values of Investment
Securities and Other
Financial Instruments

The disclosure of fair values of
securities and other financial
instruments requires management
to use certain assumptions and
estimates pertaining to the fair
values of its financial assets and
financial liabilities.

We tested the propriety of
information underlying
management’s estimates.

Loss Contingencies

LACMTA consults with legal
counsel to evaluate outstanding
litigation, claims and assessments.
Factors that affect management’s
evaluation of litigation contingencies
requiring disclosure include the
nature of the contingencies and
whether the outcome could have an
effect on the consolidated financial
statements.

Based on information obtained
from LACMTA'’s legal counsel
regarding this matter and
discussions with management,
we concur with management’s
determination that the loss
contingency does not meet
conditions for accrual of being
both probable and estimable,
and, thus, no accrual is
recorded and no specific
disclosures are required.

Pension and
Postretirement Obligations

Amounts reported for pension and
postretirement obligations require
management to use estimates that
may be subject to significant
change in the near term. These
estimates are based on projection
of the weighted average discount
rate, rate of increase in future
compensation levels, and weighted
average expected long-term rate of
return on pension assets.

We reviewed the
reasonableness of these
estimates and assumptions.

AUDITOR'S JUDGMENTS ABOUT QUALITATIVE ASPECTS OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

PRACTICES

We are to discuss with you our comments about the following matters related to LACMTA'’s accounting
policies and financial statement disclosures. Accordingly, these matters will be discussed during our

meeting with you.

e The appropriateness of the accounting policies to the particular circumstances of the entity,
considering the need to balance the cost of providing information with the likely benefit to users
of the entity's financial statements.

e The overall neutrality, consistency, and clarity of the disclosures in the financial statements.
e The effect of the timing of transactions in relation to the period in which they are recorded.

The potential effect on the financial statements of significant risks and exposures, and
uncertainties that are disclosed in the financial statements.

The extent to which the financial statements are affected by unusual transactions including
nonrecurring amounts recognized during the period, and the extent to which such transactions
are separately disclosed in the financial statements.

The issues involved, and related judgments made, in formulating particularly sensitive financial
statement disclosures.

The factors affecting asset and liability carrying values, including the entity's basis for
determining useful lives assigned to tangible and intangible assets.

The selective correction of misstatements, for example, correcting misstatements with the
effect of increasing reported earnings, but not those that have the effect of decreasing reported
earnings.



CORRECTED AND UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS

Corrected Misstatements: We are to inform you of material corrected misstatements that were brought to

the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures.

There were no such misstatements.

Uncorrected Misstatements: We are to inform you of uncorrected misstatements that were aggregated by

us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest and prior period(s) presented that were
determined by management to be immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial
statements taken as a whole. For your consideration, we have distinguished misstatements between known
misstatements and likely misstatements.

Refer to the discussion of uncorrected misstatements below as well as the attached summary of waived
adjustments.

1.

Two known misstatements and one likely misstatement were waived by management relating to
the generation and sale of low carbon fuel standards (LCFS) credits, a program administered by
the California Air Resources Board. LACMTA generates these credits through the usage of low
carbon fuel options, such as CNG and propulsion power, activities that are recorded on the
Enterprise fund (business-type activities). Thus, the revenue from the sales of these credits should
be recorded on the Enterprise fund. However, management has recorded the revenue on the
General fund to provide greater visibility to the revenue being generated.

The first known waived adjustment is to reverse the revenue recorded from the sale of credits in
FY 2018 in the General fund and present it as an operating transfer from the Enterprise fund in the
amount of $20.3 million. The second waived adjustment records the $20.3 million of revenue on
the Enterprise fund and the transfer of the funds to the General fund in operating transfers out.

In addition to reclassifying the revenue between LACMTA's funds, we also noted that the number
of credits held as of the reporting date, multiplied by their estimated fair value, should be recorded
as an asset based on the GASB’s definition of an asset. This resulted in a likely misstatement that
understated Enterprise fund assets by approximately $43.5 million, understated revenue by
approximately $16.9 million, and understated net position by approximately $26.6 million. The
misstatement of net position represents the estimated value of LCFS credits that were held as of
June 30, 2017, which was reported as waived adjustment in the FY 2017 audit.

A known misstatement relating to interest relating to construction projects was waived by
management. Certain of LACMTA’s rail projects have related TIFIA loans that were issued
specifically for their construction. The proceeds drawn on these loans were not removed from the
balance of qualifying assets as prescribed by GASB 62. This errors resulted in an overstatement
of assets and understatement of interest expense on the Enterprise fund of $38.9 million.

A known misstatement was waived by management to reverse revenue and receivables relating to
amounts originally billed to Caltrans that were subsequently determined to be billed internally. The
result was an overstatement of revenue and receivables in the amount of $3.9 million.

Known misstatements to properly defer revenue relating to receivables not collected within 90 days
were waived by management. In October 2018, LACMTA received a late cleanup payment of sales
tax which impacted the Proposition A fund, Proposition C fund, Measure R fund, Measure M fund,
and TDA fund. As a result, deferred revenues were understated and revenues are overstated by
$12.5 million each for the Proposition A fund, Proposition C fund, Measure R fund, and Measure M
fund and $6.6 million for the TDA fund.

A known misstatement was waived by management to restate opening net position for revenue
that related to a prior period. As a result, revenues were overstated and net position was
understated by $1.5 million.



OTHER COMMUNICATIONS

Communication ltem

Results

Other Information In Documents Containing
Audited Financial Statements

Information may be prepared by management
that accompanies the financial statements. To
assist your consideration of this information, you
should know that we are required by audit
standards to read such information and consider
whether such information, or the manner of its
presentation, is materially inconsistent with
information in the financial statements. If we
consider the information materially inconsistent
based on this reading, we are to seek a
resolution of the matter.

We understand that management has not
prepared such information to accompany the
audited financial statements.

Significant Difficulties Encountered During
the Audit

We are to inform you of any significant difficulties
encountered in dealing with management related
to the performance of the audit.

There were no significant difficulties encountered
in dealing with management related to the
performance of the audit.

Disagreements With Management

We are to discuss with you any disagreements
with management, whether or not satisfactorily
resolved, about matters that individually or in the
aggregate could be significant to LACMTA'’s
financial statements or the auditor’s report.

During our audit, there were no such
disagreements with management.

Consultations With Other Accountants

If management consulted with other accountants
about auditing and accounting matters, we are to
inform you of such consultation, if we are aware
of it, and provide our views on the significant
matters that were the subject of such
consultation.

We are not aware of any instances where
management consulted with other accountants
about auditing or accounting matters since no
other accountants contacted us, which they are
required to do by Statement on Auditing
Standards No. 50, before they provide written or
oral advice.

Representations The Auditor Is Requesting
From Management

We are to provide you with a copy of
management’s requested written representations
to us.

We direct your attention to a copy of the letter of
management’s representation to us provided
separately.

Significant Issues Discussed, or Subject to
Correspondence, With Management

We are to communicate to you any significant
issues that were discussed or were the subject of
correspondence with management.

There were no such significant issues discussed,
or subject to correspondence, with management.

Significant Related Party Findings and Issues
We are to communicate to you significant
findings and issues arising during the audit in
connection with LACMTA's related parties.

There were no such findings or issues that are,
in our judgment, significant and relevant to you
regarding your oversight of the financial reporting
process.

Other Findings or Issues We Find Relevant or
Significant

We are to communicate to you other findings or
issues, if any, arising from the audit that are, in
our professional judgment, significant and
relevant to you regarding your oversight of the
financial reporting process.

There were no such other findings or issues that
are, in our judgment, significant and relevant to
you regarding your oversight of the financial
reporting process.




We are pleased to serve LACMTA as its independent auditors and look forward to our continued
relationship. We provide the above information to assist you in performing your oversight responsibilities,
and would be pleased to discuss this letter or any matters further, should you desire. This letter is intended
solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and, if appropriate, management, and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Crirme LLP

Crowe LLP

Los Angeles, California
December 19, 2018
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Attachment B

LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

SINGLE AUDIT REPORT

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2018
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LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
Los Angeles, California

SINGLE AUDIT REPORT
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2018

CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS........oooiiiii e

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE;
AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANGCE ..ottt

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS .......ccooociiiiecee,

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS..........cccceoveieene

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS



Crowe LLP

Independent Member Crowe Global

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Los Angeles, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA) as of and for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the basic financial statements, which collectively comprise
LACMTA's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 19, 2018. Our
report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the defined benefit
pension plan financial statements of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Retirement Income Plans, as described in our report on LACMTA'’s financial statements. The financial
statements of the defined benefit pension plan of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation
Authority Retirement Income Plans were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered LACMTA's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of LACMTA'’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of LACMTA'’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

(Continued)



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether LACMTA's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

C’Wm LLP

Crowe LLP

Los Angeles, California
December 19, 2018




Crowe LLP

Independent Member Crowe Global

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM;
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF
EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Los Angeles, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority’s (LACMTA) compliance with
the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of LACMTA’s major federal programs for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2018. LACMTA’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of LACMTA’s major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about LACMTA’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for
each major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of LACMTA’s
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, LACMTA complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements

referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

(Continued)



Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of LACMTA is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered LACMTA’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of LACMTA's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we identified a deficiency
in internal control over compliance, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs, as item 2018-001, that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

LACMTA's response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit are described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. LACMTA’s response was not subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the
response.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

(Continued)



Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards Required by Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of LACMTA as of and for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise LACMTA’s
basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated December 19, 2018, which contained
unmodified opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming
opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal and state
awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Crviwe LLP

Crowe LLP

Los Angeles, California
December 19, 2018




‘SpJeme a)e)s pue [eiepa} Jo sainyipuadxe o 8|npayos au} 0} ssjou Bulkuedwoooe sag

91028 - - ¥90'8v€ 080'GEY 000°G7y 210-8102-¥0 105°02 ANH ANIGON YIS 3 BPEUBLLIOL] UBLISBPad SYIE] BSOH/00.G MOIIM
8EY'G9 - - €5.'192 261'L2¢ €€5'€EL 620791020 10602 sdojs sng Joj Bunybi pue obeubls
000°GL - 000°09 000°09 000°6. 000°059'¢ 190X-66-Y0 10602 AyoeS “ULP/2lUN OND euljeeg a[epuslo
686'GES - 8E6'EVL'T 8E6'EYL'T €26'6,9'C €18'266'9 6ZEX-G6-YO 105°0Z Juawainooud sng Juaidioaigng
9€6'00€ - GPL'€0T') GPL'€0T'L 189'705°} 000°966'C 12TX-56-YO 10G°0Z sjusLA0.dL] PUE SJUBLLISOUBYLT "Pad / SSE]
1€8'819'65 - - 08¥'£62'02 91€'9,6'6L 000°000°€Y G70-9102-¥D 105°02 DVID Z Uoioes - ' aur ejding apisisep
16221 - - 6986 091°204 000°000°Z £608102-¥D 105°02 DVIND - saloya A ey BT apimwelsAs
009°€L2'9 - - yLZ'8LLES 718°1€8°65 000°0€0°Ly 920-9102-YD 10602 se[aIYB A 1By BIT api mwalsAS
825'992'01 - - GpL'eGe'eL €12'029'c8 000°Z28'0Z1 10-9¥2X-66-Y0 106°0Z uoisinbay 9jaIYS A I Wb
99202 - - 082°091 ov0'l8l 000°000'%9 1GZX-56-YO 105°0Z UOIONJISUOD JOPLIOD YSUELL Uoo2ULOD [euoiBay
0se - - 9Ly 98 [V 600-8102-YD 105°02 | Uonoes uoisus)xg aul aidind opIsISSM DVIND £ Ad
- - G19'9¢ G19'9¢ 00L°180°bL 167 A-06-YD 105°0T weiboid sng pidey one
- - 676'€01 676'€0L 625'616'8C 19ZA-06-YD 105°0Z Auoud [eubig/suonelg sng pidey olen
Zvs'iee - 991 ‘988 991088 80.'201°} 697'G86'G PLLA-06-YO 105°0Z SallIok} YsuelL/s|olys A\ ojuelbang
SJUBID) B|NUWIOS - §ISUBI] [eJapaq

(126'299'112) - 260°L¥5'C 1/6°810°6.€ 059'66€°291 8v1'v26'296 [EJOL Sjue.S Juawa Ao [epdeD - Usuel] [esepe-
0£9°6v2 816°286 8y1'82z’L 000°000'C ¥¥0-L102-¥D 00502 Ueld uonejuaLIuadL]
aiBejesis QOL JOPLICD HSUBLL YoueId BUY EJUES 1SBM (4)50002 Uooes | z-den
yzL'sy - 168'28) 2e9'eTe 195'899'L 00-€21-9402-¥0 005°0Z dos sng zeAeyD JeseD/UoNElS UoLN selebuy s07
(116'069'551) - 86.'€0Z'8LL (eL2'9vy'L€) 000°000°00€ 1$0-9102-¥D 005°0Z V44~ g uoisusyxg aur aidind opisisapn
(580°280°901) - ¥¥6'9€8'Tr | 658'67.'9E 000°000°00€ 110°9102-¥D 005°0Z | uopoes - 'pa aur ejdind apisisep
12e'v0l - €8T LIy £8Z'LLY ¥09'125 2€2'205'C 1900702 005°02 SJUBLUBOUBYUT UBLSBpad puE Jebusssed
§10'98¢'8Y - 81Z'€06'LLL ¥62'682°09) 000°000°00€ 9¥0-9102-¥2 005°0Z UOIONJISUOD JOPLIOD YSUEIL Uoo2ULOD [euoiBay
y€6'88Y - 86G'G8'L 2€5'PreT 000°LL€'€T G180-€0-¥D 005°0Z sueT AUO sng "PAIg SIUSIN
§68'ZiL 1€8'55% 1€8'55Y 189'895 005'618°C 1910-70-¥D 005°02 sasng uoisuedx3 B sJejue) Yisue.L
16L'€C - ¥91'56 ¥91'66 gg6'8lL 8.6'1EL L ¥600-70-¥D 005°02 sJejue) ysuel jo Buussuibug bui
160°60€ - 12T'0eT'L 1220221 ¥82'625°L 096°0.5'G 8800-70-YO 00602 SJB)aYS B HIEd SN / SO SueJL
1¥9'68 - 186'85¢€ 185'85€ eeT'ary 1L YITL €810-€0-YO 00°02 snq |and ‘)l .z B Ueyus ssed/pad
10L°2LT - ShP'90G orL'6LL 000°00L‘9k 96.0-€0-YO 005°0Z aunsop deo waysAs pidey oen

Sjuels) Juauanoidwy [eyde) - ysuel] |esapaq
J3)SNID NsueJ] [esapad
:swelbold j0aiiq

- - - 16g'91€'125 16€'91€'128 000'000'¢2€'} [ej0L WeJBoid WdIL

- - - 000'000°202 000000202 000'000°20€ v€00L-€102 £€22°02 T Uonosg - uolsusixg au
a|ding auisap - wieabold (VIdIL) 19 UOHEAOUU| PuB 29UBUIJ 3IN}ONJ}SeJju| uohepodsuel]

- - - 116'12v'8sT 118'12¥'852 000°000'958 V6001-€102 €ceoe | Uoidag - uoisuslxg aul
a|dind auisap - wiebold (VI4[L) 10V UOKEAOUU| pUB 29UEUI] 2JN}ONJ}SEJu| Uohepodsuel]

- - - 028'¥68'6S 028'768'GS 000'000°09} Vv8001-€102 €2207  40j08uU0D [euoibay - weiBold (VidlL) 19V UoheAouu| pue 9ouBULy 8INjoNJSeIHU| uoleHodsuel L

welibold (V]d|L) 10 UolleAOUU| pUB 8dUBUI4 SIN}ONJ)SEL U] Uohelodsuel]
sweibold 1081ig

16¥'186 - £00'€6E 162116 ¥12'66¥'C 1£9'622'12 |el0] JsisnjD uojonysuo) pue Buiuueld Ae mybiH
8,02y - zie's9l zie'g9l 06€'0LZ 000'00%'2 L10X-0L-VD §02'0C [euLIS | SJON OJIlIqED JONISUOISY
- - 169'v2e 169'v2C 169'v22C 000'008 G00X-G1-VO 60202 Aoy ueLysapad pue uelysapad
swelbold 1081ig
Y916 - - €65'6/Z gez'els 000'209'C (€22)5909-TND §02°0Z saue ssaudx3q 0L JoJ Juawnooq [ejuaiuoAUT/jenoiddy 1osloid
gol's - - G9L's 0es'LL 000'000'€ (912)5909-1ALNOLY §02°0Z (SILV) weysAS uolewIo U] Jo|oABIL PEOUBAPY Jyblald
190'8G1 195'852 y€9'9Ly 000'051'C (602)5909-dLV '2204-G145909-L0 §02'0C opeue|ds3 epaLue]y :Ueld JS)SE\ UONEIS Uolun
(6€L°1) - - (LyL'eet) (L8p'sel) 000'000' (061) 5909 INTND §02'02 weiBoud uoiyeanps uoepodsuel] sAOY
¥9'6LL - - 11G'8LL 1z2'868 1€9'2L2'9 800822-L0 VMH4 §02°0Z V1 UMOJUMOQ 0} 0L L-L UO Ae M JiSUe] JO UOISUB)XT

uononJsuo) pue Buluueld Ae mybiH
J3)snD uonoNIsuo) pue Buluueld Ae mybiH
:uojepiodsuel| o juainedaq eluIoeD JO 31elS au) Ybnouyy passed
UOHE.ISIULIPY JiSuel] [eJapad
uoljepodsued] jo juawpedaqg ‘SN
SjUEeJD |eJapad

aleys [e207] aleys 9jels sjuaidioaigns o} aJeys [eJopad |eyoL plemy [ejol JaquunN BuiApuap) ues JaquunN 2 yoeloud/iopuelb ybnoayy-ssedyep weiboid/ajy Jeysnjo/iojuelb [esepad
ybnouyy passed ybnouy)-ssed pue weiboud 1081Q va4o
aleys [eJapad

810Z ‘0€ aunp papua Jeak [edsl) ay} Joj [ED0|/8)e)S/[BIapa} Japun papuadxa [ejoL

8102 ‘0€ aunr papus Jeak |eosi
SAYVMY J1LV1S ANV 1vd3d3dd 40 SFANLIANIdX3 40 ITNAIHOS
ALIHOHLNY NOILV1HOdSNVHL NVLITOdOd1dN ALNNOD SITIAONY SO



‘SpJeme a)e)s pue [eiepa} Jo sainyipuadxe o 8|npayos au} 0} ssjou Bulkuedwoooe sag

667'020°'L - 8€6°/92'G 199'¢16'G G9L'vE6'9 £90°'€€8°1L.L [Bj0L JaysniD sadlAIag YsuelL
068'992 - Gol'sel’) ¥92'9/8'L ySL'erL'e £09'796'61 [e10] WeiBoid Wopaaiy maN
9/1'26L - 108'€0C 108'€0Z 785'06€ 89'¥SE'L 001X-26-VO X414 eoueysissy “Buiesado 3 [eyded -wopsaly meN
960'6€ - 160°GEV'L 160°GEV'L €6L'vLY'L 920°20L'8 10-780X-26-VO lesoe eoueysissy “Buiesado 3 [eyded -wopsaly meN
6l0'GE - 19z'98 192'98 08z'lzL €66'66.°L 8¥0X-.5-VO lzsoe eoueysissy “Bunesado 3 [eyded -wopsaly meN
- - - 660151 660'1G1 re'esL'T €00X-L5-VO 1esoc Z1-90 A4 WPV Weuboid -wopaald maN
welbold wopaald maN
196°10¥ - 69e'e8e’L £79'6e8’l 0l9'/22'C 16£'996'9¢ [e}0 L WeiBoud Snuo) 8sIeAsy pue $S320Y qor
- - €02'6L9 €0Z'6L9 €02'6.9 1289'11L° LLIX-LE-VO 9lgoc ‘sissy Bunesadoyjende) - 1oslold Wweibold pue ss820Y qor Aunod v
L1€'v02 - g€l L1€'%02 ¥£9'80% ¥20'8/8'€L €TIX-LE"VO 91602 }sissy Buljesadoyjeyded - a0 asIaAsy pue $saddY gor
169'261 - 820'70L 820'v0L 6.9'106 188'eve0L 001X-2€-VO 91502 103f0.d
weJBold pue ss899Y qor Auno) v -193l0id WeIBold N0 9SI9ASY PUE SS90V qor
- - - ¥60'8€C ¥60'8€C 6Y8'Z€0°'G 1L0X-2€-VO 915°0C T1-90 Ad "uonessiuMLPY WelBoud Sinuo) 8SI8Asy pue $$399Y qor AunoD v ]
WelBold SNULLIOD 9SI9ASY PUE SSBIDY qop
2r9'LGe - €00'651'2 09L'112'e 10v'€96'2 690'206'7L [E}0L SOMIGESI Yl M SEnpIAIpU] PUE SI0lUaS Jo ANlIqo paoueyus
- - - 151'28 16228 ¥68'€r0'L 620-8102-¥0 €102 uohessiuLpY Weibold 0} €S UoRdaS Aunod v
0zr've 11T'6€EL L112'6E) 869'€91 $09'2L0°L 10-290X-91-VO €15°0C juawaindold sng H-0¢
1zelze - GYS'vee’L SYS've6'L 99/'192°C 16¥'260'9 990X-91-VO €lgog weboud Aigesiq yym sien| U] pue sioluas Jo A
- - 18168 181'G8 18168 0Z1'c69 £€900-91-v0 €15°0C S esig pue sioluss 4o Al
|esiq Yi M S[ENpIAIpU| pUE sioluaS Jo AJIqo paoueyuz
Ja)snD swelbold s9IAISS Ysuel]
(L12'96%'8Y) 1€8'00¥'e 09%'968°L zzy'evee6s geo'ele'ers €12'02L'6¥6'L [ej0L J8ysniD ysuel] [esspad
2.2'2L1'9 - - 180'689'¥C 66€'198'0¢ 616'16V'EY [e10] WeiBoud ejnuio salioey sng pue sng
[ 40K - - 180'689'¥C 66€'198'0¢ 6.6'L6Y'EY 290-8102-VO 92502 soueUBUIEN
BAJUBASI PUE ‘BUIUIBI| /A8 92JOPIOM ‘9SET OND 'SUONISINbIY sng BEES UONDSS /L/9L Ad
weJbold ejnwiod saioe sng pue sng
LyL'y95'ee - - £86'85Z'VEL 0£2'€28'/91 ¥LL'€E2'T62 lejo) weiboud sjuels Jieday pooo 4o ajels
9LL'v18'1T - - 201'667'L8 8/8'¢2€'60L 201'66¥'L8 £0-960-8102-V0 525702 spun4 Aemapino paxid - 9OUBUBIUIBI SAIUSASL] [IBY 81 AJ ONBIN V1 LEES
€eT'6L8'L - - 0€6'9.0'9 €91'96G°L 0€6'9L0'9 20-960-8102-VO erdgv4 spund snaJojo\ Aysuajul ybiH - @ouBUBIUIBI BARUBABL] IIBY 8L A4 OBIBIN V1 LEES
G06'CLL - - 029'160°€ G25'v98'e 029'160°€ 20-960-8102-VO Gegaoe spund snaJojo\ Aysuaju] YbiH - eoUBUBIUIB BARUBABK] |IBY 8L A4 0B8N V1 LEES
150'Ghp'e - - 202'08L'6 £62'622'2L 20Z'08L'6 10-950-8102-¥0 §25°0C spun4 Aemapin paxi] - 9OUBUSIUIEN SANUSASL] [IBY 8L AJ ONBIN V1 LEES
855'720'9 - - €€2'860'VC 16L'zzL'0e 09v'152'98 1€0-8102-¥0 §25°0C SINBYIBAQ BIIPIN BIQIYBA IIBY OB VT LEES
¥22'826 - - 968'ZLL'E 0zL'Lyo'y 09v'¥€5'66 €0-¥90-2102-VD 525702 spung Ae maping paxid - S9UBUSIUIEN SAJUSASI 1B L1 Ad ON8IN VT
welbold sjueis Jieday pooo Jo ajels
689'6ZY €Tl 168007’ 89€'6VE'S 181'182'66¢€ 162'2L1'28Y 2.£'0,0°169 [EJOL SjUBID E|NULIOS - }isUel] [eJdpa]
6.2'652'C - - yLL'L€0'6 €6€'962' L1 ¥L1'2€0'6 10-960-8102-V0 105°0C Spun4 ajels BulMouD - SUBLBIUIEI SAUSASL IIeY 8L Ad ONNBIN V1 OVEG/L0ES
78€'L0V'ee - - 8z5'629'eEl 016'9€0°'L9L 825'629'€€L $20-8102-¥O 105702 BoUBUBJUIBN BAUBABI] Sng LOEG UOHOSS 8| Ad
161'612°L - - 68L'€0L’S 986'8.£9 68L'€0L'S ¥0-950-8102-VO 105°0T B8JY paziueqin - dOUBUBUIB BARUBASL |18 8) A4 OB VT L0ES
88/'6l8 - - Lsl'eLe'e 6€6'860'Y 1s1'6L2'e €0-950-8102-¥D 10602 spun ejels Buimous - 8oUBLBJUIBI dARUBASL [IBY 81 Ad O8I V1 0¥EG/L0ES
0S0'v¥L - 616'550'L 615'G50'L 695'66.° 000°90Z'Z Tv0-L102-YO 105°0Z wesBoud (DVND) JawaAoidu| AYfenD Jiy pue LoReBi uonsabuc)
892'/85'C 259'1¥8'L - 8L9'GLL'LL 865'v¥ 12T 2€0'660'SYy €0-620-9102-V0 105°0C aoueysissy Bujesado [ aseud aurl odxd olei
ze8' LYy 6L1'619'L - L¥0'8¥L'vZ 250'G81'0¢€ 000'00%'L¥ 10-620-9102-¥0 105702 adue)sissy BuieladO uolsuapd [iLpood aur pIoD o8N
- - - L0Z'v¥2'6 L02'¥vT'6 8/.'6¥9'GE 290-9102-YO 10602 UOIJEPOLLLIODDY X /] / MBUSUBID PUE J0JO3UUOD OB Hodlly
2Jeys [e207] aleys aleis sjuaidiosigns 0} 2JeyS [eJopa4 |eyol piemy [ejo] JaquinN BulAmusp) ueis JaquinN 3} 109loud/iojuesb yBnoayy-ssedap weaboid/apy Jaysn|o/iojuelb |esapay
ybnouyy passed ybnouy}-ssed pue weibold }0a.1q va4o

aJeys |eJapad

8102 ‘0€ aunp papus Jeak [edsl) aU} Jo} [BD0|/a)E)S/|BIaPa} Japun papuadXa [ejoL

8102 ‘0E aunr papus JeaA |eoasi4

SAIdVMY F1VLS ANV 1vd3d34 40 STFINLIANIdXT 40 ITNAIHOS
ALIHOHLNV NOILVLHOdSNVHL NVLITOdOd1L3IN ALNNOD STTIONY SO



‘SpJeme a)e)s pue [eiepa} Jo sainyipuadxe o 8|npayos au} 0} ssjou Bulkuedwoooe sag

ole'zzg'oLe $ L1z'ove'ys ¢ - $ - $ yeL'eal’szy $ 0z8'Ly9'0st $ Sjueld 8jejs |ejoL
9l¥'69 116'992 - - 1z6'see 000'00S 2le0vYL uoljeiodsuel | BAIOY B S}ealS 9je|dLioD Joy aanenul Aigear] 0124
- 9€9'99Z - - 9€9'99Z 000'000'22 L1V G0-¥€000V.20 ¥suelL sng yinog-yroN Asjle\ opueusad ues - ssjabuy so7
118'zeT'e8 0v6'8.8'L - - L18'LL1L'G8 000°806'L G0-2191-dO¥IL '¥D09¢ed V3 Buiuspip\ [eHiod pue 3oequinL O uoisiAg
6196621 619'66L'L - - 6ET'6LG'E 000919 (212)6909-L LINdddILS weuboid Bunopuop 9 BurweBold ‘Buiuuel - (Weibo.d Juswanoidw uolepodsuel | 81eis) Ndd diLS
ole'zyL'ol 88L'TYLLL - - y01's8¥'2C 000'v6¥'8€ 20-L191-dOdIL 'YOEGeY V3 108f0.1d Yuswanoidwy [eubls jiey WBIT sur anjg
982'985'C 612'208'} - - 505'88¢'y 000'860'¢ (¥0Z)S909-9VNdd-dILS juawdojaAsg wiesbold pue Buiuued olieriodsuel | [euoiBay
Tes'15e LL9'vL - - £61'86€ 000°08Z (002)5909NTdLY Ueld 8|\ 1se7 /384 8urq anig oleiy
£82'9¢ g8lL'lze - - 89¥'/G€ 8/0'G88 919-v10€ 0 Mawie.4 uolejuawaldw| asn pueT pue uoiepodsuel) Aeg Yinos slgeuleisng
(128°19) 228'eS - - 10 000°2SL 06G-0vv-v1 Auioeo @duBUBUIE ¥ LOISIAC VINO YT 108/0Jd 10| UojUB}aJ0lg PUE JUBlUBARY Bjdealuled
068'08 £€8'651 - - £89'0VC 000'261 50-€L-AdVY weiBoid ABojouyoa) s|alya A B 19N S MBUSY B SANBUISYY
eS'yL 606'Ct - - evy'L2 000°000' L0¥0VS.L LO-¥1L €L V-0l 108foud W0 el YHoN sANN LeA (¥01) ey Andsaiy g1 uolysodosd
(43 (690'%) - - (6v6'c) 000°000°'L 895-¢l0¢€ Auigeuieisng pue uoioy sjewild [euoiBly 4oy uoleAIaSUCD
11¥'900'C 000'000°L2 - - 11¥'900'62 000°000°22 411v2d V3 ZV-7L-¥E00V.L0 SAIYB A [IBY DI opi MwasAS
- 620l - - 6z.'0L 6201 V3ASINLA €1 doid - ayeis Joplio) Yisuel] X1/ Meysuasd
2v6'¥80'0.2 000'088'9 - - TV6'v96'9.2 000'088'9 €V €1-¥.€00V.L0 J0pLIoY Ysuel| X/ meysusD
- 805'210'C - - 805'210'C €/0'€0}'9L 0L116-L€0#Sdl4 ‘Z00-19€9 L1-0} Ad - Anoes g} doyg
967’6 $ ST $ - $ - $ ciL'ol $ ooo‘col'ol  $ 0L116-LE0#SdI4'200-1919 60-80 Ad - Andeg g} doxg
sjuelD sjels
(oev'eze'zy) ¢ 1€8'09¥'¢ $ 000°25s'€l  $ ¥06'616'L2V'L$ 9/0°250'68¢'+$ 569'0Z¥'26€'€$ SjueJ9 [esepad [ejoL
- - - GG6'G6E'S 1T1'96€'S 87e'125'9 |e301 Ajunoag puejawoH jo yuawpedsd ‘S
- - - GG6'G6E'S 1T1'96E'S 82€'125'9 10000-V¥-G1 02-MINT GL0°L6 Hun uonalpJSiU] Jesly Jo Juauuelsng
weibold Juets Anoag Jsuel] pue jiey
swelbold 108iig
:A)lIn2ag puejawoy jo juawpedaqg ‘SN
(oev'62€'2h) 1€8'09%'¢ 000'255'€L 8Y6'€Ts'cey'L 6/€'559'e8€E'L 19€'506'06€'E lejo uoljeiodsuel Jo uawpedaq ‘s
265'620't - - 628'LYE Ley'LLEY 000°050°'22 lejoL Asejaioag 8y} Jo 82140
265'620't - - 628'1ve lzv'lie'y 000'050'22 [BIOL SIUSLU}SIAU] SINJONJISEIU] [BUOHEN
€9/°106'¢ - - 906'8¢ 692'0v6'e 000'0520L 010-9102-VD £€6°02 SIUSWISACIAL| UOIEIS SHIE BSOH/HO0I] MOJIAA
828,21 - - €2€'€0e z5LLey 000°008°L} §000-6.-VO €€6°0C sjuaWanoIdL| sS800Y BpIs)se]
S)UBW}SAAU| 3IN}ONJISEIJU| [EUOHEN
Kiejoioag 8y} Jo 20110
(z20'65¢'9%) 1€8'09¥'¢ 000°256'€L 6ll'zel'zey'L 826'€8Z'6.€'L 19¢'G68'89¢'e [E}OL UohEASIUIPY JSuel] [eJapad
ovz'sel - - 9/8's8l sli'iee 00¥'zL0'e [ejo Jaysnio juaudojans( pue yoJeasay
ove'sel - - 9/8'G8} Siliee 00¥'2L0'e lejo Buiuie)] pue ‘soueysissy [edluyos] ‘Yolessay uolenodsuel] dljand
- - - 9vs'9l s ol 000°06€'L 810-L102-YO y16°02 HAT i m diysisupied SN 1seT / ¥sui4 punos yebng pue Aunog vl
ove'sel - - 62¢'691 695'70€ ooy'zeL't G10L-92-VD 1502 owiag uohos)a uolsniu| 3okl | wioseld
Bulules] pue ‘aduelsissY [BOIUYDD| ‘Ydoieasay uoleniodsuel] dllgnd
J9)sNjD JusdojaAs] PUE Y2Ieasay
aleys (207 aleys aleys sjuaidioaigns 0} aleys [etapad |eyol plemy |ejo] JaquinN Buluapy uels JaqunN 3 108loud/iojuelb ybnoayy-ssed/ap welboid/spi Jaysnjo/iojuelb |eispay
ybnouy} passed ybnouy}-ssed pue weiboud 1090 va4o

aleys |esopad

8107 '0€ dunp papus Jeak [easl) By} 40} [ED0|/2)E)S/|BIaPa S Japun papuadxa [ejo]

8102 ‘0€ aunr papus Jeak |eosi
SAYVMY J1LV1S ANV 1vd3d3dd 40 SFANLIANIdX3 40 ITNAIHOS
ALIHOHLNY NOILV1HOdSNVHL NVLITOdOd1dN ALNNOD SITIAONY SO



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - GENERAL

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards (the Schedule) presents the grant
activity of all expenditures of federal and state award programs of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan
Transportation Authority (LACMTA) in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). All federal awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as
federal awards passed through other government agencies, are included in the Schedule. The Schedule
also includes state grants that do not participate in the federal awards. LACMTA is the reporting entity as
defined in Note 1 to the financial statements of LACMTA'’s basic financial statements.

NOTE 2 — BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures are
recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles in OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles for
State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments or the cost principles contained in Uniform Guidance, wherein
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts
shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts
reported as expenditures in prior years. LACMTA has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect
cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 3 — STATE AND LOCAL FUNDS REIMBURSEMENT

LACMTA utilizes state and local funds when federal funds are not received in a timely manner. Upon receipt
of federal funds, LACMTA reimburses state and local funds that were utilized for expenditures for federal
programs. Reimbursements are shown as credit balances in the Schedule. Expenditures incurred during
the current fiscal year, but before a federal grant is executed are included as state or local on the Schedule
in the year the expenditures are incurred and are reported as federal on the Schedule in the year the grant
was executed.

NOTE 4 - FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Pursuant to the Single Audit Act and Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement, the federal financial
assistance is defined as assistance provided by a federal agency, either directly or indirectly, in the form of
grants, contracts, cooperative agreements, loans, loan guarantees, property, interest subsidies, insurance,
or direct appropriations. Accordingly, nonmonetary federal assistance is included in federal financial
assistance and, therefore, is reported on the Schedule, if applicable. Federal financial assistance does not
include direct federal cash assistance to individuals. Solicited contracts between the state and federal
government for which the federal government procures tangible goods or services are not considered to
be federal financial assistance. For CFDA #20.223, $343,227,963 included in the Schedule represent
current year loan proceeds for expenditures that were originally incurred in prior years.

NOTE 5 - MAJOR PROGRAMS

The Single Audit Act and Uniform Guidance establish criteria to be used in defining major federal financial
assistance programs. Major programs for LACMTA are those programs selected for testing by the auditor
using a risk assessment model, as well as certain minimum expenditure requirements, as outlined in
Uniform Guidance. Programs with similar requirements may be grouped into a cluster for testing purposes.




LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2018

SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS
Financial Statements:

Type of report the auditor issued on whether

the financial statements audited were prepared

in accordance with GAAP:

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards:
Internal control over major federal programs:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major federal programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Identification of major federal programs:
CFDA 20.513/20.516 / 20.521
CFDA 97.075

CFDA 20.223

Dollar threshold used to distinguish type A and B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Unmodified
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
X __ Yes
Unmodified
X__ Yes

X No

X None reported

X No

X No

None reported

No

Transit Services Programs Cluster

Rail and Transit Security Grant Program

Transportation Infrastructure Finance
and Innovation Act (TIFIA) Program

$

4,283,760

X Yes

No

(Continued)
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LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2018

SECTION Il - FINDINGS RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, WHICH ARE REQUIRED TO
BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

None.

SECTION Il - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS INCLUDING AUDIT
FINDINGS AS DEFINED IN TITLE 2 U.S. CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS PART 200, UNIFORM
ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS, COST PRINCIPLES, AND AUDIT REQUIREMENTS FOR
FEDERAL AWARDS

Finding 2018-001 — Subrecipient Monitoring (Significant Deficiency)

Information on Federal Program:
CFDA Numbers and Program Names: Transit Services Programs Cluster
20.513 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with
Disabilities
20.516 Job Access and Revenue Commute Program
20.521 New Freedom Program

Federal Agency: Department of Transportation

Criteria:

2 CFR 200.331 REQUIREMENTS FOR PASS-THROUGH ENTITIES.

All pass-through entities must:

(f) Verify that every subrecipient is audited as required by Subpart F—Audit Requirements of this part when
it is expected that the subrecipient's Federal awards expended during the respective fiscal year equaled or
exceeded the threshold set forth in §200.501 Audit requirements.

Condition: Management is required to verify that each subrecipient is audited if required by §200.501 Audit
requirements. For the programs listed above, we noted that management did not have adequate controls
in place to ensure compliance with this requirement.

Questioned Costs: None noted.

Context: In our sample of five subawards under the Transit Service Programs Cluster, management did
not obtain the single audit report for the City of Pasadena (City), a subrecipient of Grant CA-37-X100, for
fiscal year 2017. The City indicated in its annual self-certification form that the threshold to require a single
audit was not met for fiscal year 2017. We noted that the City’s response was inaccurate through verification
on the Federal Audit Clearinghouse.

Cause: LACMTA’s policy requires subrecipient to complete an annual self-certification form to indicate
whether the entity is subject to audit under §200.501 Audit requirements, however, management does not
verify the accuracy of the subrecipient’s response through review of submissions within the Federal Audit
Clearinghouse. The City of Pasadena incorrectly completed the annual self-certification form and disclosed
that they did not meet audit requirement for fiscal year 2017.

Effect: Management relied on the City’s response, and therefore did not obtain the audit report as required
by 2 CFR 200.331(f).

(Continued)

1.



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2018

Recommendation: We recommend that management corroborate each subrecipient’'s response in the
annual self-certification form by searching the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. This verification should be
maintained with the subrecipient’s annual self-certification form to evidence the review was performed. We
also recommend management consider requiring subrecipients to submit their annual financial audit report
and related management letter to review for any deficiencies internal control from the financial statement
audit that could have an impact on internal controls surrounding the management of federal awards.

Management's Response: Management agrees with this finding and acknowledges that the policies in
place do not require verifying that the annual self-certification responses are correct. In the future we plan
to communicate to individuals completing the self-certification that the response applies to the entire entity,
not just the particular grant or cluster.

12.



Attachment C

LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
FEDERAL FUNDING ALLOCATION DATA
Transportation Operating Agency (ID# 90154)

Independent Accountant’s Report
On Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2018


huynhn
Text Box
Attachment C



Crowe LLP

Independent Member Crowe Global

Independent Accountant’s Report
on Applying Agreed Upon Procedures

Management and the Board of Directors
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Los Angeles, California

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) has established the following standards with regard to the data
reported to it in the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics form (FFA-10) of the Los Angeles County
Metropolitan Transportation Authority’s (the Authority) annual National Transit Database (NTD) report:

e A system is in place and maintained for recording data in accordance with NTD definitions. The
correct data are being measured and no systematic errors exist.

e A system is in place to record data on a continuing basis, and the data gathering is an ongoing
effort.

e Source documents are available to support the reported data and are maintained for FTA review
and audit for a minimum of three years following FTA's receipt of the NTD report. The data are fully
documented and securely stored.

e A system of internal controls is in place to ensure the data collection process is accurate and that
the recording system and reported comments are not altered. Documents are reviewed and signed
by a supervisor, as required.

e The data collection methods are those suggested by FTA or otherwise meet FTA requirements.

e The deadhead miles, computed as the difference between the reported total actual vehicle miles
data and the reported total actual vehicle revenue miles (VRM) data, appear to be accurate.

e Data is consistent with prior reporting periods and other facts known about the Authority’s
operations.

We have applied the procedures, as described in Attachment A, to the data contained in the accompanying
FFA-10 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. Such procedures, which were agreed to and specified by
FTA in the Declarations section of the 2018 Policy Manual and were agreed to by the Authority management
and the Board of Directors, were applied to assist the Authority in evaluating whether the Authority complied
with the standards described in the first paragraph of this part and that the information included in the NTD
report FFA-10 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018 is presented in conformity with the requirements of
the Uniform System of Accounts (USOA) and Records and Reporting System; Final Rule, as specified in
49 CFR Part 630, Federal Register, January 15, 1993 and as presented in the 2018 Policy Manual. The
District management is responsible for the FFA-10 and compliance with NTD requirements. The sufficiency
of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the parties specified in this report. Consequently, we make
no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures enumerated below either for the purpose for
which this report has been requested or for any other purpose.



The procedures in Attachment A were applied separately to each of the information systems used to
develop the reported actual vehicle revenue miles (VRM), fixed guideway (FG), directional route miles
(DRM), passenger miles traveled (PMT), and operating expenses (OE) of the Authority for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2018 for each of the following modes:

Motor Bus — directly operated

Motor Bus — purchased transportation
Rapid Bus — directly operated

Heavy Rail — directly operated

Light Rail — directly operated

Vanpool — purchased transportation

In performing the procedures, except for the information identified in Attachment A to this report, no matters
came to our attention that would be required to be reported to you regarding the information included in the
NTD report on the FFA-10 Form for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. This agreed-upon procedures
engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review,
the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on conformity with
the requirements of the Uniform System of Accounts (USOA) and Records and Reporting System; Final
Rule, as specified in 49 CFR Part 630, Federal Register, January 15, 1993 and as presented in the 2018
Policy Manual. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional
procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. This
report relates only to the information described above, and does not extend to the Authority’s financial
statements taken as a whole, or the forms in the Authority’s NTD report other than the FFA-10 form, for any
date or period.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, the management of the
Authority, and the FTA and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these

specified parties.
Gl/u'm LLP

Crowe LLP

Los Angeles, California
October 31, 2018



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
ATTACHMENT A — AGREED UPON PROCEDURES
June 30, 2018

FTA Suggested Procedures:

a.

Obtain and read a copy of written procedures related to the system for reporting and maintaining data
in accordance with the NTD requirements and definitions set forth in 49 CFR Part 630, Federal Register,
dated January 15, 1993 and as presented in the 2018 Policy Manual. If procedures are not written,
discuss the procedures with the personnel assigned responsibility of supervising the NTD data
preparation and maintenance.

Step performed without exception.

Discuss the procedures (written or informal) with the personnel assigned responsibility of supervising
the preparation and maintenance of NTD data to determine:

e The extent to which the transit agency followed the procedures on a continuous basis, and

e Whether they believe such procedures result in accumulation and reporting of data consistent with
the NTD definitions and requirements set forth in 49 CFR Part 630, Federal Register, dated January
15, 1993 and as presented in the 2018 Policy Manual.

Step performed without exception.

Ask these same personnel about the retention policy that the transit agency follows as to source
documents supporting NTD data reported on the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics form (FFA-10).

Step performed without exception.

Based on a description of the transit agency's procedures obtained in items a and b above, identify all
the source documents that the transit agency must retain for a minimum of three years. For each type
of source document, select three months out of the year and determine whether the document exists
for each of these periods.

Selected source documents from all modes and from several different months in fiscal years
2017, 2016, and 2015 to ensure they were retained for a minimum of three years. We observed
that the source documents were maintained for each fiscal year as required.

Discuss the system of internal controls. Inquire whether separate individuals (independent of the
individuals preparing source documents and posting data summaries) review the source documents
and data summaries for completeness, accuracy, and reasonableness and how often these individuals
perform such reviews.

Per inquiry with the management, the individuals reviewing source documents are independent
of individuals preparing the information and the review is done on a periodic basis depending
on the data being reviewed.

Select a haphazard sample of source documents and determine whether supervisors' signatures are
present as required by the system of internal controls. If supervisors' signatures are not required, inquire
how personnel document supervisors’ review.

Selected a haphazard sample of 40 source documents, noting the required approval on all
source documents. Step performed without exception.



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
ATTACHMENT A — AGREED UPON PROCEDURES
June 30, 2018

g. Obtain the worksheets used to prepare the final data that the transit agency transcribes onto the Federal
Funding Allocation Statistics form. Compare the periodic data included on the worksheets to the
periodic summaries prepared by the transit agency. Test the arithmetical accuracy of the summaries.

We obtained the worksheets and agreed the data on the worksheets to the summaries provided
and verified the arithmetical accuracy of the summaries without exception for the VP-PT, HR-
DO, LR-DO, MB-DO, and RB-DO modes. For the MB-PT mode, we noted that the Dodger Express
vehicle revenue hours (VRH) data was not included on the FFA-10 form. As aresult, 9,351 VRH’s
were excluded. Total VRH’s reported on the FFA-10 form was 482,596.

h. Discuss the procedure for accumulating and recording passenger miles traveled (PMT) data in
accordance with NTD requirements with transit agency staff. Inquire whether the procedure is one of
the methods specifically approved in the 2018 Policy Manual.

For the rail and van pool modes, the Authority utilized a statistical sampling method as
described in FTA Circulars 2710.1A. For the motor bus modes, the Authority utilized a 100%
count verification for passenger trips and an estimate of passenger miles based on a statistical
sampling method as described in FTA Circulars 2710.2A.

i. Discuss with transit agency staff, the transit agency's eligibility to conduct statistical sampling for PMT
data every third year. Determine whether the transit agency meets NTD criteria that allow transit
agencies to conduct statistical samples for accumulating PMT data every third year rather than
annually. Specifically:

a. According to the 2010 Census, the public transit agency serves an urbanized area (UZA)
of less than 500,000 population.

b. The public transit agency directly operates fewer than 100 revenue vehicles in all modes
in annual maximum revenue service (VOMS) (in any size UZA).

c. Service purchased from a seller is included in the transit agency's NTD report.

d. For transit agencies that meet one of the above criteria, review the NTD documentation
for the most recent mandatory sampling year (2018) and determine that statistical
sampling was conducted and meets the 95% confidence and +10% precision
requirements.

e. Determine how the transit agency estimated annual PMT for the current report year.

Per inquiry with the Authority management, the Authority does not meet any of the three criteria
that allows transit agencies to conduct statistical samples for accumulating passenger mile
data every third year. Therefore, the Authority conducts statistical sampling annually as
described in procedure h.

j. Obtain a description of the sampling procedure for estimation of PMT data used by the transit agency.
Obtain a copy of the transit agency's working papers or methodology used to select the actual sample
of runs for recording PMT data. If the transit agency used average trip length, determine that the
universe of runs was the sampling frame. Determine that the methodology used to select specific runs
from the universe resulted in a haphazard selection of runs. If the transit agency missed a selected
sample run, determine that a replacement sample run was haphazard. Determine that the transit
agency followed the stated sampling procedure.

Step performed without exception.



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
ATTACHMENT A — AGREED UPON PROCEDURES
June 30, 2018

Select a haphazard sample of the source documents for accumulating PMT data and determine that
the data are complete (all required data are recorded) and that the computations are accurate. Select
a haphazard sample of the accumulation periods and re-compute the accumulations for each of the
selected periods. List the accumulation periods that were tested. Test the arithmetical accuracy of the
summarization.

Selected a haphazard sample of 128 source documents across all modes from all twelve months
in fiscal year 2018, used for accumulating passenger miles traveled (PMT) data and determined
they were complete and mathematically accurate. We tested the average trip length and the
total trips for each of the samples and recomputed the accumulations for each period. Step
performed without exception.

Discuss the procedures for systematic exclusion of charter, school bus, and other ineligible vehicle
miles from the calculation of actual vehicle revenue miles with transit agency staff and identify that
stated procedures are followed. Select a haphazard sample of source documents used to record charter
bus service and test the arithmetical accuracy of the computations.

Step performed without exception.

. For actual vehicle revenue miles (VRM) data, document the collection and recording methodology and
identify that deadhead miles are systematically excluded from the computation. This is accomplished
as follows:

e If actual VRMs are calculated from schedules, document the procedures used to subtract missed
trips. Select a haphazard sample of the days that service is operated, and re-compute the daily
total of missed trips and missed VRMs. Test the arithmetical accuracy of the summary.

e [factual VRMs are calculated from hubodometers, document the procedures used to calculate and
subtract deadhead mileage. Select a haphazard sample of the hubodometer readings and
determine that the stated procedures for hubodometer deadhead mileage adjustments are applied
as prescribed. Test the arithmetical accuracy of the summary of intermediate accumulations.

o If actual VRMs are calculated from vehicle logs, select haphazard samples of the vehicle logs and
determine that the deadhead mileage has been correctly computed in accordance with FTA
definitions.

Vehicle logs are used to compute the VRM data for non-fixed routes. For fixed routes, the
Authority uses monthly services reports and daily loss service records to record any missed
trips. The VP-PT mode does not have any deadhead miles. Selected a haphazard sample of
114 source documents across all modes and recalculated the VRMs for the sample of trips,
excluding deadhead miles. Step performed without exception.

For rail modes, obtain and read the recording and accumulation sheets for actual VRM’s and identify
that locomotive miles are not included in the computation.

Step performed without exception. There are no locomotives.



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
ATTACHMENT A — AGREED UPON PROCEDURES
June 30, 2018

o. If fixed guideway or High Intensity Bus directional route miles (FG or HIB DRM) are reported, interview
the person responsible for maintaining and reporting the NTD data whether the operations meet the
FTA definition of fixed guideway (FG) or High Intensity Bus (HIB) in that the service is:

¢ Raill, trolleybus (TB), ferryboat (FB), or aerial tramway (TR) or
e Bus (MB) service operating over exclusive or controlled access rights-of-way (ROW), and

0 Access is restricted

0 Legitimate need for restricted access is demonstrated by peak period level of service D or
worse on parallel adjacent highway, and

0 Restricted access is enforced for freeways; priority lanes used by other high occupancy
vehicles (HOV) (i.e., vanpools (VP), carpools) must demonstrate safe operation (see Fixed
Guideway Segments form (P-40))

o High Occupancy / Toll (HO/T) lanes meet FHWA requirements for traffic flow and use of
toll revenues, and that the transit agency has provided to NTD a copy of the State’s
certification to the US Secretary of Transportation that it has established a program for
monitoring, assessing and reporting on the operation of the HOV facility with HO/T lanes.

Step performed without exception.

p. Discuss the measurement of FG and HIB DRM with the person reporting NTD data and determine that
the he or she computed mileage in accordance with the FTA definitions of FG/HIB and DRM. Inquire
of any service changes during the year that resulted in an increase or decrease in DRMs. If a service
change resulted in a change in overall DRMs, re-compute the average monthly DRMs, and reconcile
the total to the FG/HIB DRM reported on the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics form.

Per inquiry of management, no new FG segments were added in fiscal year 2018.

g. Inquire if any temporary interruptions in transit service occurred during the report year. If these
interruptions were due to maintenance or rehabilitation improvements to a FG segment(s), the following
apply:

e Report DRMs for the segment(s) for the entire report year if the interruption is less than 12
months in duration. Report the months of operation on the FG/HIB segments form as 12. The
transit agency should document the interruption.

e Ifthe improvements cause a service interruption on the FG-DRMs lasting more than 12 months,
the transit agency should contact their validation analyst to discuss. FTA will make a
determination on how the DRMs should be reported.

Per inquiry of management there were no interruptions in service during fiscal year 2018 that
would require a change in reporting.

r.  Measure FG/HIB DRM from maps or by retracing route.
We measured all of the FG/HIB maps. Step performed without exception.

s. Discuss whether other public transit agencies operate service over the same FG/HIB as the transit
agency. If yes, determine that the transit agency coordinated with the other transit agency (or agencies)
such that the DRMs for the segment of FG/HIB are reported only once to the NTD on the Federal
Funding Allocation form. Each transit agency should report the actual VRM, PMT, and OE for the
service operated over the same FG/HIB.

Per inquiry of management, the Authority is the approved operator for all of their FG and the
Authority is reporting their actual VRM, PMT, and OE for their services. Step performed without
exception.



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
ATTACHMENT A — AGREED UPON PROCEDURES
June 30, 2018

Review the FG/HIB segments form. Discuss the Agency Revenue Service Start Date for any segments
added in the 2018 report year with the persons reporting NTD data. This is the commencement date of
revenue service for each FG/HIB segment. Determine that the date reported is the date that the agency
began revenue service. This may be later than the Original Date of Revenue Service if the transit
agency is not the original operator. If a segment was added for the 2018 report year, the Agency
Revenue Service Date must occur within the transit agency’s 2018 fiscal year. Segments are grouped
by like characteristics. Note that for apportionment purposes, under the State of Good Repair (§5337)
and Bus and Bus Facilities (§5339) programs, the 7-year age requirement for fixed guideway/High
Intensity Bus segments is based on the report year when the segment is first reported by any NTD
transit agency. This pertains to segments reported for the first time in the current report year. Even if a
transit agency can document an Agency Revenue Service Start Date prior to the current NTD report
year, the FTA will only consider segments continuously reported to the NTD.

Per inquiry of management, no new FG segments were added in fiscal year 2018.
Compare operating expenses with audited financial data after reconciling items are removed.
Step performed without exception.

If the transit agency purchases transportation (PT) services, interview the personnel reporting the NTD
data on the amount of PT-generated fare revenues. The PT fare revenues should equal the amount
reported on the Contractual Relationship form (B-30).

We agreed the fare revenue for the vanpool and motor bus PT without exception.

If the transit agency's report contains data for PT services and assurances of the data for those services
is not included, obtain a copy of the Independent Auditor Statement for Federal Funding Allocation
(IAS-FFA) data of the PT service. Attach a copy of the statement to the report. Note as an exception if
the transit agency does not have an Independent Auditor Statement for the PT data.

We inquired to management and noted that the report does include PT from private operators,
but that an Independent Auditor Statement is not required since the Authority is a public
transportation provider and the PT expenditures are included on the B-30 form of the NTD.

If the transit agency purchases transportation services, obtain a copy of the PT contract and determine
that the contract specifies the public transportation services to be provided; the monetary consideration
obligated by the transit agency or governmental unit contracting for the service; the period covered by
the contract (and that this period overlaps the entire, or a portion of, the period covered by the transit
agency’s NTD report); and is signed by representatives of both parties to the contract. Interview the
person responsible for retention of the executed contract, and determine that copies of the contracts
are retained for three years.

We obtained a copy of the PT contract for each provider and noted that the contract included a
description of the services to be provided, the monetary consideration obligated by the
Authority for the service and the period covered by the contract and that this period is the same
as, or a portion of, the period covered by the Authority’s NTD report; and is signed by
representatives of both parties to the contract. Management stated that copies of the executed
contracts are retained for the last three years, as applicable.
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LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
ATTACHMENT A — AGREED UPON PROCEDURES
June 30, 2018

If the transit agency provides service in more than one UZA, or between an UZA and a non-UZA, inquire
of the procedures for allocation of statistics between UZAs and non-UZAs. Obtain and review the FG
segment worksheets, route maps, and urbanized area boundaries used for allocating the statistics, and
determine that the stated procedure is followed and that the computations are correct.

Per management, the Authority provides most of their services in one UZA and therefore it is
all allocated to that one UZA. Additionally, all of the services provided are in urbanized areas
and allocations to non-urbanized areas are not required, therefore the procedure is not
applicable.

Compare the data reported on the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics Form to data from the prior
report year and calculate the percentage change from the prior year to the current year. For actual
VRM, PMT or OE data that have increased or decreased by more than 10%, or FG DRM data that have
increased or decreased. Interview transit agency management regarding the specifics of operations
that led to the increases or decreases in the data relative to the prior reporting period.

We compared and agreed the data reported on the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics form
(Form FFA-10) to comparable data for the prior report year and calculated the percentage
change from the prior year to the current year. There were no variances greater than 10% in
any mode except for VP-PT and RB-DO. In those two modes, we inquired to the Authority and
documented the explanations for the variances.

The auditor should document the specific procedures followed, documents reviewed, and tests
performed in the work papers. The work papers should be available for FTA review for a minimum of
three years following the NTD report year. The auditor may perform additional procedures, which are
agreed to by the auditor and the transit agency, if desired. The auditor should clearly identify the
additional procedures performed in a separate attachment to the statement as procedures that were
agreed to by the transit agency and the auditor but not by the FTA.

Step performed without exception.
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Crowe LLP

Independent Member Crowe Global

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON
APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES

Management
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Los Angeles, California

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, on the application of the requirements of the
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) as set forth in its applicable National Transit Database (NTD) Uniform
System of Accounts (USOA) by the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA)
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. Such procedures, which were agreed to by the management of
LACMTA and the FTA, were performed to assist LACMTA and FTA in determining conformance with USOA
requirements based on the following assertion by LACMTA’s management:

The accounting system from which the NTD reports for the year ended June 30, 2018 were
derived, uses the accrual basis of accounting and is directly translated, using a clear audit
trail, to the accounting treatment and categories specified by the USOA.

LACMTA's management is responsible for conformance with the requirements described above. The
sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the parties specified in this report.
Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below
either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose.

The agreed-upon procedures and associated findings are as follows:
1. Procedure: NTD Crosswalk

a. Obtain the following NTD Reporting Forms prepared by management for the year ended June 30,
2018:

= NTD Form F-10, Sources of Funds — Funds Expended and Funds Earned (USOA Section 2)
= NTD Form F-20, Uses of Capital (USOA Section 3)

= NTD Form F-30, Operating Expenses (USOA Section 4, 5, and 6 and Appendix A)

= NTD Form F-40, Operating Expenses Summary

= NTD Form F-60, Financial Statement

b. Obtain the reconciliation documentation management prepares (referred to as “the crosswalk”
throughout this report) to reconcile the chart of accounts, general ledger, and/or trial balance and
other supporting documents such as Excel spreadsheets (collectively referred to as the accounting
system) to the respective NTD Reporting Forms identified above.

c. Inquire of management as to whether the crosswalk obtained in procedure 1.b is supported by the
accounting system.



For a transit agency that is part of a larger reporting entity, inquire of management as to whether
the crosswalk includes the full cost of providing transit service, including costs incurred by the larger
reporting entity to specifically support the agency’s transit service.

e. Inspect the crosswalk to determine that it incorporates NTD reporting using the applicable modes
and types of service identified in the bulleted list below:
= Sources of Funds, Form F-10 — Funding sources, passenger fares by mode and service type,
passenger fares by passenger paid or by organization paid fares, revenue object class, and
funds expended on operations and capital fund types
= Uses of Capital, Form F-20 - Type of use, asset classifications, and modes and service types
= Operating Expenses, Form F-30 - Modes, service types, object classes and functions
= Operating Expenses Summary, Form F-40 - Expense reconciling items
» Financial Statement, Form F-60 - Current assets, non-current assets, deferred outflows of
resources, current liabilities, non-current liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources.
Findings:

No exceptions were found as a result of this procedure.

Procedure: Accrual Accounting

a.

Obtain the most recent audited financial statements that include the transit agency and inspect the
notes to the financial statements to determine whether the accrual basis of accounting was used.

Inquire of management as to whether the accrual basis of accounting has continued to be used
since the last audited reporting period and that it is used for NTD reporting in the current period.

If the notes to the financial statements indicate that an accrual basis of accounting is not being
used, or the results of the inquiry to management in procedure 2.b indicate the accrual basis of
accounting is not being used in the current period, inspect the crosswalk to determine that the
transit agency made adjustments to convert to an accrual basis for NTD reporting.

Findings:
No exceptions were found as a result of this procedure.

Procedure: Sources of Funds (Form F-10)

a.

Trace and agree total sources of funds from Form F-10 to revenue reported in the accounting
system using the crosswalk.

Inspect the crosswalk for a written reconciliation between total revenues reported in the audited
financial statements or the accounting system and the total revenues reported on Form F-10.

Trace and agree the two largest directly generated fund passenger fare revenue modes (all service
types) from Form F-10 to the accounting system.

Trace and agree the largest revenue object class (other than passenger fares) in the following
major categories of funds from Form F-10 to the accounting system: (1) Local Government; (2)
State Government; (3) Federal Funds; and (4) Other Directly Generated Funds (i.e., 4100 and 4200
combined).

Inspect the crosswalk to determine that it identifies, evaluates, and classifies financial transactions
into categories of funds expended on operations and funds expended on capital (USOA Section 2)
for the reporting year.

Findings:
No exceptions were found as a result of this procedure.



4. Procedure: Uses of Capital (Form F-20)

a.

b.

Obtain accounting system documentation on capital asset additions for the reporting period.

Trace and agree total uses of capital from Form F-20 to the crosswalk reconciliation of total capital
asset additions.

Trace and agree types of use (existing service and expansion of service) from Form F-20 to the
crosswalk or other supporting documentation reflecting the nature of the uses of capital.

Trace and agree asset classifications (guideway, revenue vehicles, etc.) from Form F-20 to the
crosswalk or other documentation reflecting the assets classes of capital additions.

For the largest mode/service type, trace and agree the type of use classification and asset
classification from Form F-20 to the crosswalk or other documentation reflecting the uses of capital.

If capital projects support multiple modes/types of services or and/or asset classifications, inquire
of management as to whether management reported the use of capital considering the predominant
use rules as described in the “Predominant Use” section of the 2018 NTD Policy Manual.

If capital projects involve: 1) Rehabilitation/Reconstruction/Replacement/Improvement for Existing
Service; and 2) Expansion of Service; inquire of management as to whether project costs were
allocated between the two project purposes and whether such allocation was documented in the
crosswalk or other supporting documentation.

Findings:
No exceptions were found as a result of this procedure.

5. Procedure: Operating Expenses (Form F-30)

a.

For the two largest modes/type of services, trace and agree functions (vehicle operations, vehicle
maintenance, etc.) from Form F-30 to the crosswalk or other written documentation of functional
expenses.

For the two largest modes/type of services, trace and agree object classes (natural expenses) from
Form F-30 to the crosswalk or other written documentation of object class categories.

If management allocated shared operating expenses, inquire of management as to whether (1)
the operating expenses are split between direct and shared costs; (2) shared costs were
allocated across modes, services types and functions, (3) the allocation was documented in the
crosswalk or other supporting documentation; and (4) the driving variables used are updated
annually.

Findings:
No exceptions were found as a result of this procedure.

6. Procedure: Operating Expenses Summary (Form F-40)

a. Obtain total expenses from the accounting system for the reporting period. Trace and agree total
expenses from Form F-40 to the accounting system using the crosswalk.

b. Trace and agree the reconciling items appearing on Form F-40 through the crosswalk to the
accounting system.

Findings:

No exceptions were found as a result of this procedure.



7. Procedure: Financial Statement (Form F-60)

a. Trace and agree (1) Current Assets; (2) Non-Current Assets; (3) Deferred Outflows of Resources;
(4) Current Liabilities; (5) Non-Current Liabilities; and (6) Deferred Inflows of Resources appearing
on Form F-60 to the crosswalk or other supporting documentation.

Findings:
No exceptions were found as a result of this procedure.

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. We were not engaged to, and did not,
conduct an examination or review, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or
conclusion, respectively, LACMTA’s conformance with the requirements described above, for the year
ended June 30, 2018. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed
additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to
you.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management of LACMTA and the FTA and is
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Crome LLP

Crowe LLP

Los Angeles, California
November 7, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CALIFORNIA CODE OF
REGULATIONS (SECTION 6667); REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND
REPORT ON 50% EXPENDITURE LIMITATION SCHEDULE

The Board of Directors
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Los Angeles, California

Report on Compliance with the Transportation Development Act

We have audited the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA) compliance with
the types of compliance requirements described in the Transportation Development Act Guidelines,
including Public Utility Code Section 99245 as enacted and amended by statute, and the allocation
instructions and resolutions of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (as Planning
Agency) as required by Section 6667 of the California Code of Regulations adopted by the California
Department of Transportation (collectively, Transportation Development Act [TDA]) that could have a direct
and material effect on LACMTA’s compliance with the Transportation Development Act for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2018.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to the Transportation Development Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for LACMTA’s TDA program based on our audit
of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and the Transportation Development Act. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the TDA program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about LACMTA’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the TDA program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of LACMTA’s compliance.

Opinion on the Transportation Development Act Program
In our opinion, LACMTA complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements

referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the TDA program for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2018.



Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of LACMTA is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered LACMTA'’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the TDA program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance on the TDA program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance
with the TDA program, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of LACMTA’s
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a TDA
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of the TDA program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of the TDA program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may
exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Transportation Development Act. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on 50% Expenditure Limitation Schedule

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of LACMTA as of and for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise LACMTA's
basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated December 19, 2018, which contained
unmodified opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming
opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The
accompanying 50% expenditure limitation schedule is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is
not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the 50% expenditure limitation schedule is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.

Crome LLP

Crowe LLP

Los Angeles, California
December 19, 2018



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT
50% EXPENDITURE LIMITATION SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

1 Total operating cost $

2 Total capital requirements
3 Total debt service

4

1,736,005
1,768,792
467,140

Total of lines 1, 2, and 3

3,971,937

5 Less federal grant received
6 Less State Transit Assistance (STA) funds received

7

913,257
49,008

Total of lines S and 6

962,265

Total of line 4 less line 7

3,009,672

50% of line 8

1,504,836

Total permissible Local Transportation Fund expenditures $

1,504,836
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CALIFORNIA
CODE OF REGULATIONS (SECTIONS 6640-6662); REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

The Board of Directors
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Los Angeles, California

Report on Compliance with the Transportation Development Act

We have audited the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA) compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the Transportation Development Act Guidelines, including
California Code of Regulations (Sections 6640-6662) (Transportation Development Act [TDA]) that could have a
direct and material effect on LACMTA’s compliance with the Transportation Development Act for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2018.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to the Transportation Development Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for LACMTA’s TDA program based on our audit of the
types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
the Transportation Development Act. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on the TDA program occurred. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence about LACMTA’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the TDA program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of LACMTA’s compliance.

Opinion on the Transportation Development Act Program

In our opinion, LACMTA complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on the TDA program for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.



Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of LACMTA is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered LACMTA'’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could
have a direct and material effect on the TDA program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance on the TDA program and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the TDA program, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of LACMTA'’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a TDA program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of the TDA program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of the TDA
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Transportation
Development Act. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the LACMTA as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise LACMTA's basic financial
statements. We issued our report thereon dated December 19, 2018, which contained unmodified opinions on
those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. The information has been subjected to auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole.

Crvirwe LLP

Crowe LLP

Los Angeles, California
December 19, 2018



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT
AND
PROP 1B PTMISEA PLANNING AGENCY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

Transportation Development Act

Planning Administration Total PTMISEA
Revenues:
Local grants and contracts $ 5015 § 3485 § 8,500 $ —
Expenditures: 5,015 3.485 8,500 —
Excess of revenues over expenditures — — — —
Other financing uses:
Transfers out — — — (10
Net change in fund balances — — — (10)
Fund balances - beginning of year — — — 10
Fund balances - end of year $ — — § — 5 —

See notes to Schedule of Revenues Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT
AND
PROP 1B PTMISEA PLANNING AGENCY
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

(1) Transportation Planning Agency

The Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA) is the regional
transportation planning agency responsible for long-range transportation planning and is designated under
the provisions of Section 65080 of the California Government Code (the Code) to prepare and adopt the
Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) and the Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP). Both
the RTP and RTIP are directed to achieve a coordinated and balanced regional transportation system for
the county in its jurisdiction. LACMTA is also the administrator of the Local Transportation Fund (LTF)
under the provisions of Section 9532 of the Code.

The LTF was created by the Transportation Development Act (TDA) to fund transit projects in each
county. The LTF retail sales taxes collected statewide by the California Department of Tax and Fee
Administration and which are returned to individual counties according to the amount collected within
that county. Los Angeles County sales tax receipts are deposited in the Los Angeles County Treasurer’s
Office. LACMTA, as administrator of the LTF, is authorized to distribute funds from the Treasurer’s
Office to claimants for transit projects that are in accordance with the Code.

(2) Prop 1B PTMISEA

The Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement and Service Enhancement Account (PTMISEA)
was created by the Highway Safety, Traffic Reduction, Air Quality, and Port Security Bond Act of 2006.
Of the $19.9 billion available to transportation, $3.6 billion was allocated to PTMISEA to be available to
transit operators over a ten-year period. PTMISEA funds may be used for transit rehabilitation, safety or
modernization improvements, capital service enhancements or expansions, new capital projects, bus rapid
transit improvements, and rolling stock (buses and rail cars) procurement rehabilitation or replacement.
Funds in this account are appropriated annually by the Legislature to the State Controller’s Office (SCO)
for allocation in accordance with Public Utilities Code formula distributions: 50% is allocated to Local
Operators based on fare box revenue and 50% to Regional Entities based on population. LACMTA has
fully drawn down the Prop 1B PTMISEA fund in fiscal year 2017. The residual balance of $10 was
transferred to the LACMTA enterprise fund for capital projects. As of June 30, 2018, the Prop 1B
PTMISEA fund has no fund balance.

(3) Basis of Accounting

The TDA Fund and PTMISEA fund use the modified accrual basis of accounting as required by generally
accepted accounting principles. Under this basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when they
become measurable and available, and expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is
incurred.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Directors
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Los Angeles, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the State Transit Assistance Fund (the STA
Fund), a special revenue fund of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA),
as of and for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements,
as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the STA Fund, of the LACMTA, as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the changes in financial
position thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.



Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the STA Fund and do not purport to, and do
not, present fairly the financial position of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority,
as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the changes in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for
the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matter
Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of allocations, and
schedule of expenditures and transfers are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the financial statements.

The management’s discussion and analysis, as listed in the table of contents, is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the management'’s discussion and analysis is fairly stated, in all material respects,
in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The budgetary comparison information, schedule of allocations, and schedule of expenditures and
transfers, as listed in the table of contents, has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the financial statements and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 4,
2018 on our consideration of the STA Fund’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the STA Fund'’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Crome LLP

Crowe LLP

Los Angeles, California
December 4, 2018



Crowe LLP

Independent Member Crowe Global

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Directors
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Los Angeles, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the State Transit
Assistance Fund (the STA Fund), a special revenue fund of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan
Transportation Authority (LACMTA), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the STA Fund’s basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated December 4, 2018. As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present
only the STA Fund and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of LACMTA, the
changes in its financial position, or where applicable, its cash flows in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the STA Fund's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the STA Fund’s internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the STA Fund’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the STA Fund's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Orowe LLP

Crowe LLP

Los Angeles, California
December 4, 2018



Los Angeles County
Metropolitan Transportation Authority
State Transit Assistance
Special Revenue Fund
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
Fiscal years ended June 30,2018 and 2017

The Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority’s State Transit Assistance Special
Revenue Fund (the STA Fund) was created in accordance with the provisions of the Transportation
Development Act (the Act) as administered by the Department of Transportation of the State of
California (the State). Sales tax revenues of the STA Fund represent an allocation of sales tax on diesel
fuel and gas fuel collected by the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration. Expenditures
from the STA Fund are made by Los Angeles County (the County) in accordance with written instructions
issued by the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA) under the terms
of the Act.

Our discussion and analysis of STA Fund'’s financial performance presents an overview of the STA
Fund’s financial activities during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. We encourage readers to
consider information presented here in conjunction with the financial statements (beginning on page
8). The financial statements, notes to the financial statements, and this discussion and analysis were
prepared by management and are the responsibility of the management.

All amounts are expressed in thousands of dollars unless otherwise indicated.

2018 Financial Highlights

e Sales tax collected for the year increased by $76,913 or 103.90% compared with prior year. The
increase was mainly due to additional sales tax received with the passage of Senate Bill 1 (SB 1).
The bill created the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Program that addressed the
maintenance on the state highway system and the local street and road system. The bill required
the California Transportation Commission to adopt performance criteria, consistent with the
specified asset management plan, to ensure efficient use of certain funds available for the
program. The bill provided for the deposit of various funds for the program in the Road
Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account which creates revenue in the State Transportation
Fund, including revenues attributable to a $0.12 per gallon increase in the motor vehicle fuel
(gasoline) tax imposed by the bill with an inflation adjustment, as provided, 50% of a $0.20 per
gallon increase in the diesel excise tax, with an inflation adjustment, as provided, a portion of a
new transportation improvement fee imposed under the Vehicle License Fee Law with a varying
fee between $25 (amount not in thousand) and $175 (amount not in thousand) based on vehicle
value and with inflation adjustment, as provided, and a new $100 (amount not in thousand)
annual vehicle registration fee applicable only to zero-emission vehicles model year 2020 and
later, with an inflation adjustment, as provided. The fuel excise tax increases took effect on
November 1, 2017, the transportation improvement fee took effect on January 1, 2018, and the
zero-emission vehicle fee takes effect on July 1, 2020.

e Actual sales tax received from the State totaled $150,940 compared with original and final
budget of $60,000 resulting in a favorable variance of $90,940 due mainly to the supplemental
allocation received as a result of passage of SB 1 which was not budgeted during the fiscal year
2018.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
Fiscal years ended June 30,2018 and 2017

e Total other financing uses of funds increased by $11,480 or 30.59% compared with the prior
year broughtabout by an increase in State allocation received and made available to subsidize the
LACMTA Enterprise Fund for bus and rail operation and maintenance.

2017 Financial Highlights

e  Salestax collected for the year decreased by $4,659 or 5.92% compared with prior year. The decrease
was mainly due to lower allocations received from the State brought about by changes in
consumer purchases and price of the diesel fuel. Actual sales tax received from the State totaled
$74,027 compared to original and final budget of $52,855 resulting in a favorable variance of
$21,172.

e Total other financing uses of funds decreased by $54,981 or 59.43% compared with prior year
due mainly to prior year negative fund balances which resulted in the decrease in the subsidy to
the LACMTA Enterprise Fund for bus and rail operation and maintenance.

Overview of Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis serves as an introduction to the basic financial statements. The STA
Fund'’s basic financial statements consisted of two components: (1) the fund financial statements, and
(2) the notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information
in addition to the basic financial statements.

The condensed balance sheets show the STA Fund’s assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2018, 2017,
and 2016. The differences between the assets and liabilities are reported as fund balances. The fund
balance may serve as a useful indicator of the STA Fund’s financial health.

The comparative statements of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance for the fiscal years
show the underlying events or activities of the fund that impacted the fund balances.

Condensed Balance Sheets

2018 2017 2016
Total assets $ 114,973 $ 33,829 $ 43,801
Total liabilities 9,544 24,224 56,895
Fund balances 105,429 9,605 (13,094)
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 114,973 $ 33,829 $ 43,801

Total assets increased by $81,144 or 239.86% as of June 30,2018 compared to June 30,2017 primarily
due to higher allocation and larger receivable accrued in FY18 compared to the prior year. Total
liabilities decreased by $14,680 or 60.60% as of June 30, 2018 compared to June 30,2017 mainly due to



Los Angeles County
Metropolitan Transportation Authority
State Transit Assistance
Special Revenue Fund
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
Fiscal years ended June 30,2018 and 2017

the disbursement in FY17 of the amounts due to Enterprise Fund for its operating and capital
expenses.

Total assets decreased by $9,972 or 22.77% as of June 30, 2017 compared to June 30, 2016 primarily
due to lower allocation receipts from the State and smaller receivable accrued in FY17 compared to the
prior year. Total liabilities decreased by $32,671 or 57.42% as of June 30, 2017 compared to June 30,
2016 mainly due to higher subsidy to the Enterprise Fund for its bus and rail operating and capital
expenses.

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

2018 2017 2016
Revenues $ 151,635 $ 74170 $ 78,863
Expenditures and other financing
uses of funds (55,811) (51,471) (100,511)
Net change in fund balances 95,824 22,699 (21,648)
Fund balances - beginning of year 9,605 (13,094) 8,554
Fund balances - end of year $ 105,429 $ 9,605 $ (13,094)

Total revenues increased $77,465 or 104.44% during fiscal year 2018 compared to fiscal year 2017
primarily due to the supplemental sales tax allocations received from the State as a result of passage of
SB 1. Expenditures and other financing uses increased $4,340 or 8.43% during fiscal 2018 compared
to fiscal year 2017 mainly due to higher bus and rail operating subsidies to the LACMTA Enterprise
Fund.

Total revenues decreased by $4,693 or 5.95% during fiscal year 2017 compared to fiscal year 2016
primarily due to lower sales tax allocation received from the State. Expenditures and other financing
uses decreased $49,040 or 48.79% during fiscal 2017 compared to fiscal year 2016 mainly due to
lower bus and rail operating subsidies to the LACMTA Enterprise Fund.



Los Angeles County
Metropolitan Transportation Authority
State Transit Assistance
Special Revenue Fund
Balance Sheets
June 30,2018 and 2017
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

2018 2017
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 66,803 $ 13,175
Interest receivable 266 32
Sales tax receivable 47,866 20,622
Due from other funds 38 —
Total assets 114,973 33,829
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,655 1,670
Due to other funds 6,889 22,554
Total liabilities 9,544 24,224
Fund balances
Restricted 105,429 9,605
Total fund balances 105,429 9,605
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 114,973 $ 33,829

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



Los Angeles County
Metropolitan Transportation Authority
State Transit Assistance
Special Revenue Fund
Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

2018 2017
Revenues:
Sales tax $ 150,940 $ 74,027
[nvestment income 695 143
Total revenues 151,635 74,170
Expenditures:
Transportation subsidies 6,803 13,943
Excess of revenues over expenditures 144,832 60,227
Other financing uses:
Transfers out (49,008) (37,528)
Net change in fund balances 95,824 22,699
Fund balances - beginning of year 9,605 (13,094)
Fund balances - end of year $ 105,429 $ 9,605

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



Los Angeles County
Metropolitan Transportation Authority
State Transit Assistance
Special Revenue Fund

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2018 and 2017

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) General Description

The Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority’s State Transit Assistance Special
Revenue Fund (the STA Fund) was created in accordance with the provisions of the
Transportation Development Act (the Act) as administered by the Department of Transportation
of the State of California (the State). Sales tax revenues of the STA Fund represent an allocation of
retail sales tax on diesel fuel and gas fuel collected by the California Department of Tax and Fee
Administration. Expenditures from the STA Fund are made by Los Angeles County (the County) in
accordance with written instructions issued by the Los Angeles County Metropolitan
Transportation Authority (LACMTA) under the terms of the Act.

(b) Basis of Accounting

The STA Fund is reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as they become both measurable
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current
period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, LACMTA
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 90 days of the end of the current
fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred and a valid claim is
presented. Transportation subsidies are recorded when all of the eligibility requirements have
been met, including the receipt of the reimbursement request.

(c¢) Fund Accounting

LACMTA utilizes fund accounting to report its financial position and the results of its operations.
Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by
segregating transactions related to certain governmental functions or activities. The STA Fund is
considered a governmental fund. The measurement focus is the determination of changes in
financial position, rather than net income determination. Additionally, the STA Fund is considered
a special revenue governmental fund. Special revenue funds are used to account for proceeds of
specific revenue sources including sales tax that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified
purposes.

(d) Financial Statement Presentation

The accompanying financial statements present only the STA Fund and do not purport to, and do
not, present fairly the financial position of the LACMTA as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the changes
in its financial position, or where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

10
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(e) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The STA Fund’s cash and cash equivalents include deposits with the Los Angeles County
Investment Pool (LACIP). The STA Fund is an involuntary participant in the LACIP.

(f) Sales Tax Receivable

Sales tax receivables represent uncollected amounts from the allocation of retail sales tax on
diesel fuel and gas fuel collected by the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration. As
of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the STA Fund had receivables of $47,866 and $20,622, respectively.

2.Cash and Investments

Cash balances of the STA Fund are pooled with other County funds and invested by the Los Angeles
County Treasurer (the Treasurer). These funds are subject to withdrawal from the Treasurer’s pool
upon demand.

STA Fund’s pooled cash and investments with the LACIP amounted to $66,803 at June 30, 2018 and
$13,175 at June 30, 2017. The County Board of Supervisors provides regulatory oversight for the LACIP.
The value of the position in the investment pool is the same as the value of the pool. The investment
pool is not rated for purposes of evaluating credit risk as of June 30, 2018 and 2017.

Detailed information concerning the County’s pooled cash and investments can be found in the County
of Los Angeles Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). A copy of the County’s CAFR can be
obtained by writing to the Los Angeles County Auditor-Controller, 500 West Temple Street, Room 525,
Los Angeles, CA 90012-2766.

3.Due to/from Other Funds

Due to or from other funds represent payables owed to or receivable from a particular LACMTA fund for
temporary loans, advances, goods delivered, or services rendered. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the STA
Fund had a net payable to LACMTA’s Enterprise Fund for $6,851 and $22,554, respectively, for various
unpaid operating and capital subsidies.

4. Interfund Transfers

Transfers represent permanent, legally authorized transfers from a fund receiving revenue to the fund
through which resources are to be expended. These transfers represent operating and capital subsidies
given out from one fund to another fund. For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the STA
Fund transferred $49,008 and $37,528 to LACMTA Enterprise Fund, respectively.

11
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June 30,2018 and 2017

5.Sales Tax Revenue

Sales tax revenue represents amounts from the allocation of retail sales tax on diesel fuel and gas fuel
collected by the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration. For the years ended June 30,2018
and 2017, the STA Fund received an allocation of $150,940 and $74,027, respectively.

6.Payable to Cities and Jurisdictions

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the STA Fund had accrued liabilities to various cities and jurisdictions of
$2,655 and $1,670, respectively. These accrued liabilities represented claims for the current fiscal year
allocation that were disbursed by the STA Fund in the following fiscal year.

12



Metropolitan Transportation Authority

Los Angeles County

State Transit Assistance
Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

(Unaudited)

Fiscal year ended June 30,2018

Revenues:
Sales tax
Investment income
Total revenues
Expenditures:
Transportation subsidies
Excess of revenues over expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning of year

Fund balances - end of year

Variance
Original Final with Final
Budget Budget Actual budget
$ 60,000 $ 60,000 $ 150,940 90,940
— — 695 695
60,000 60,000 151,635 91,635
3,516 3,516 6,803 (3,287)
56,484 56,484 144,832 88,348
(42,119) (42,119) (49,008) (6,889)
14,365 14,365 95,824 81,459
9,605 9,605 9,605 —
$ 23970 $ 23,970 $ 105,429 $ 81,459

13



Los Angeles County
Metropolitan Transportation Authority
State Transit Assistance
Special Revenue Fund
Supplemental Schedule of Allocations (Unaudited)
Fiscal years ended June 30,2018 and 2017
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

Operating Capital Rail 2018 2017
CCR Code 6730(a) 6730(b) 6730(c) Total Total

Jurisdiction

Arcadia $ 42 — $ — $ 42 $ 22
Claremont 24 — — 24 14
Commerce 65 — — 65 30
Culver City 807 — — 807 415
Foothill Transit 3,606 — — 3,606 1,842
Gardena 798 — — 798 410
La Mirada 18 — — 18 9
Long Beach 3,494 — — 3,494 1,813
LACMTA 41,885 — 42,205 84,090 51,397
Montebello 1,237 — — 1,237 653
Norwalk 449 — — 449 234
Redondo Beach 109 — — 109 56
Santa Monica 2,989 — — 2,989 1,547
Torrance 956 — — 956 500
Antelope Valley 410 — — 410 —
LADOT 839 — — 839 —
Santa Clarita 416 — — 416 —
Foothill -BSCP 183 — — 183 —
Total STA fund

allocations $ 58,327 — $ 42,205 $ 100,532 $ 58,942

14
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Crowe LLP
Independent Member Crowe Global

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

The Board of Directors
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Los Angeles, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the State Transit
Assistance Fund (the STA Fund), a special revenue fund of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan
Transportation Authority (LACMTA), which comprise the balance sheet as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and
the related statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance for the years then ended,
and have issued our report thereon dated December 4, 2018.

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that LACMTA failed to
comply with the terms, covenants, provisions, or conditions of Section 6751 of the California Code of
Regulations, insofar as they relate to accounting matters. However, our audit was not directed primarily
toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures,
other matters may have come to our attention regarding LACMTA’s noncompliance with the above-
referenced terms, covenants, provisions, or conditions, insofar as they relate to accounting matters.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, LACMTA'’s Board of Directors,

others within LACMTA, and regulatory agencies, and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

Orvewe LLP

Crowe LLP

Los Angeles, California
December 4, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Crenshaw Project Corporation
Los Angeles, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Crenshaw Project Corporation (CPC), a
blended component unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority, as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2018 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the CPC’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the CPC, as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows thereof
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Other Matter
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 5 and 6 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses
to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide
any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 5, 2018
on our consideration of the CPC'’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the CPC’s internal control over financial reporting and

compliance.
Ovowe LLP

Crowe LLP

Los Angeles, California
October 5, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Crenshaw Project Corporation
Los Angeles, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Crenshaw Project
Corporation (CPC) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the CPC’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated October 5, 2018.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the CPC's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the CPC’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the CPC'’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the CPC's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Crvowe LLP

Crowe LLP
Los Angeles, California
October 5, 2018



Crenshaw Project Corporation
(A Component Unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

As management of the Crenshaw Project Corporation (CPC), we offer readers of our financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the CPC for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. This discussion and analysis is designed to assist the readers
in focusing on the significant financial issues and activities of the CPC.

We encourage the readers to consider the information presented herein in conjunction with
the financial statements beginning on page 7. The financial statements, the notes to the
financial statements, and this discussion and analysis were prepared by management and are
the responsibility of management.

All amounts are expressed in thousands of dollars unless otherwise indicated.
Background

The Crenshaw Project Corporation (CPC) was formed on March 23, 2012 for the sole purpose
of participating in financing public transportation projects of the Los Angeles County
Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA).

The CPC currently serves as the conduit borrower as part of a financing agreement with the
United States Department of Transportation (USDOT) under its Transportation Infrastructure
Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) program to partially finance the construction of LACMTA’s
Crenshaw/LAX Transit Corridor Project (Project).

Financial Highlights

« In September, 2012, the CPC secured a $545,900 TIFIA loan from the USDOT to partially
finance the Project. The loan under the TIFIA program is secured by Measure R sales tax
revenues allocated to the Project. As of June 30, 2018, CPC has drawn down the full amount
of TIFIA loan proceeds.

« Total assets of $580,664 represent advances to LACMTA and total liabilities of $580,664
consist of the principal amount of $545,900 and interest accretion of $34,764 on the TIFIA
loan. Therefore, there is no net position as of June 30, 2018.

« Total expenses of $23 consisted mostly of loan fees and other administration charges, which
were reimbursed by LACMTA.

« As of June 30, 2018, $1.8 billion has been expended on the Project, which is recorded in
LACMTA’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) under the Capital Assets
section of the Statement of Net Position of the Enterprise fund.



Crenshaw Project Corporation
(A Component Unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis serves as an introduction to the CPC’s basic
financial statements. The CPC’s basic financial statements are: 1) the Statement of Net
Position, 2) the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, 3) the
Statement of Cash Flows, and 4) the Notes to the Financial Statements.

The CPC’s basic financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles as promulgated by the
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The CPC is structured as an Enterprise
Fund. Revenues are recognized when they are earned and expenses are recognized when they
are incurred. See the notes to the financial statements for the summary of the CPC’s significant
accounting policies.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the CPC’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net position. The Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents the results of the CPC’s operations. The
Statement of Cash Flows presents the cash flows generated by the CPC to meet its current
maturing obligations. The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information
that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the basic financial statements.

Presented below are the condensed Statement of Net Position and condensed Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Condensed Statement of Net Position

Non-current assets $ 580,664
Total assets 580,664
Non-current liabilities 580,664
Total liabilities 580,664

Net position —

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Revenues $ 23
Expenses 23
Net income (loss) —
Changes in net position —
Net position - beginning of year —
Net position - end of year $ —




Crenshaw Project Corporation

(A Component Unit of the Los Angeles Metropolitan Transportation Authority)

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2018
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

Assets

Non-current assets
Advances to LACMTA

Total Assets

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Notes payable

Total Liabilities

Net Position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

580,664

580,664

580,664

580,664




Crenshaw Project Corporation
(A Component Unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018
(Amount expressed in thousands)

Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 23

Operating expenses

Professional, technical and other services 23

Change in net position —

Net position - beginning of year —

Net position - end of year $ —

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Crenshaw Project Corporation
(A Component Unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Statement of Cash Flows
For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from LACMTA $ 23
Payments to vendors (23)
Net cash flows from operating activities —

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents —

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year —

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year $ —

Non-cash financing activity
Interest accretion on notes payable $ 13,895

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Crenshaw Project Corporation
(A Component Unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2018

The notes to the financial statements are a summary of significant accounting policies and
other disclosures considered necessary for a clear understanding of the accompanying basic
financial statements.

Unless otherwise stated, all dollar amounts are expressed in thousands.

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting Entity

The Crenshaw Project Corporation (CPC) was formed for the specific purpose of securing a
loan from United States Department of Transportation (USDOT) under the Transportation
Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) program for the construction of LACMTA’s
Crenshaw/LAX Transit Corridor Project (Project). The Project has an approved life-of-project
(LOP) budget of $2.05 billion that covers the design and construction of a new 8.5-mile double-
track Light Rail Transit (LRT) line, including eight transit stations, procurement of a minimum
of 20 light rail vehicles, and the construction of a full service maintenance facility known as
the “Southwestern Yard”. The Project will extend from the EXPO Line (at the intersection of
Exposition and Crenshaw Boulevards) and the Metro Green Line near the existing Aviation/
LAX Station. The expected revenue operation for this Project is October 2019.

The CPC is governed by a Board of Directors (CPC Board) consisting of the same members of
the Board of Directors of LACMTA (Metro Board). The Chair, First-Chair and Second-Chair of
the Metro Board shall have the corresponding positions on the CPC Board. The Board members
may serve only as long as they are members of the Metro Board. Each Director shall serve a
term commensurate with his or her term on the Metro Board. The CPCis a blended component
unit of LACMTA because it is financially dependent upon LACMTA, and LACMTA’s approval
is needed for the CPC to expend its budgets or charges and issue long-term debt. Although
the CPCisalegally separate entity, itis in-substance part of LACMTA’s operations, and therefore
the data from the CPC is included in LACMTA’s financial data. These financial statements
present only the CPC and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of
LACMTA, as of June 30, 2018, or the changes in the financial position for the year then ended.

Fund Accounting

The proprietary fund type is used to account for ongoing operations and activities similar to
those found in the private sector, where the determination of net income is necessary or useful
for sound financial administration. The CPC uses the proprietary fund type to account for the
goods and services provided to LACMTA on a cost reimbursement basis. Proprietary funds
distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues
include reimbursements from LACMTA for operating expenses. Operating expenses include
professional services and administrative expenses. The CPC applies all applicable Government
Accounting Standard Board (GASB) pronouncements in accounting and reporting for its

10



Crenshaw Project Corporation
(A Component Unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2018

proprietary operations. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all highly liquid investments, including restricted
assets with an original maturity date of 90 days or less, are considered to be cash and cash
equivalents. Otherwise, they are considered to be investments.

Receivables and Payables

Interagency receivables/payables are amounts owed to/due from other LACMTA funds for
services performed. Payables are amounts due to vendors for goods or services received.

Note 2 - Advances to LACMTA

Advances to LACMTA consist of cash advances to partially finance the construction of the
Project. As of June 30, 2018, the outstanding balance of advances to LACMTA totaled $580,664.

Note 3 - Notes Payable

In September, 2012, the CPC secured a loan not to exceed $545,900 from the USDOT under
the TIFIA program to partially finance the construction of the Project. The loan, secured by a
portion of LACMTA’s Measure R sales tax revenues allocated to the Project, bears interest at
2.43% per annum on the outstanding balance with maturity date of June 1, 2034. On each June
1 and December 1, interest accrued in the sixmonth period ending on such date is capitalized
and added to the outstanding balance of the TIFIA loan. The principal amount is payable in
annual installments on June 1 of each year commencing on June 1, 2021, while the interest
payments are payable semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 of each year commencing on
December 1, 2020. As of June 30, 2018, the outstanding balance of the TIFIA loan, including
$34,764 in interest accretion, was $580,664.
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Crenshaw Project Corporation
(A Component Unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2018

The CPC's annual debt service requirements (including future interest accretion to principal)
are as follows:

Year
Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2019 $ (13,010) $ 13,010 $ —
2020 (14,534) 14,534 —
2021 (59) 14,759 14,700
2022 8,619 14,781 23,400
2023 8,829 14,571 23,400
2024-2028 156,383 67,217 223,600
2029-2033 348,642 37,658 386,300
2034 85,794 2,085 87,879

$ 580,664 $ 178,615 $ 759,279

The annual debt service requirements were calculated based on allocation of loan payments
from the principal amount of $545,900.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Directors
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Los Angeles, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and the special
revenue fund of the Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies (SAFE), a component unit of the Los
Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA), as of and for the year ended June 30,
2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprises SAFE’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of SAFE as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 4 to the basic financial statements, the governmental activities beginning net position
and the special revenue fund beginning fund balance as of July 1, 2017 have been restated to correct a
misstatement. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Management has omitted management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our
opinions on the basic financial statements are not affected by this missing information.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise SAFE’s basic financial statements. The budgetary comparison information is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The budgetary comparison information, as listed in the table of contents, is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. This information has not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 20,
2018 on our consideration of SAFE’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the SAFE’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Orewe LLP

Crowe LLP

Los Angeles, California
December 20, 2018



SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2018
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental Activities

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,836
Investments 10,492
Intergovernmental receivable 698
Interest receivable 63
Total assets 24,089
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 513
Total liabilities 513

Net position:

Restricted for motorist aid system projects 23,576

Total net position $ 23,576

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.



SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Statement of Activities
For year ended June 30, 2018
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental Activities

Program expenses, net of revenues:

Transit operations:

Congestion relief operations $ 4,687
Subsidies to LACMTA 500
Total program expenses 5,187
General revenues:
License fees 8,223
Investment income 208
Total general revenues 8,431
Change in net position 3,244
Net position — beginning of year 18,874
Prior period adjustment (Note 4) 1,458
Net position — beginning of year, as restated 20,332
Net position — end of year S 23,576

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.




SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2018
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

Special Revenue Fund

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,836
Investments 10,492
Intergovernmental receivable 698
Interest receivable 63
Total assets $ 24,089
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 513
Fund balance:
Restricted for motorist aid system projects 23,576
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 24,089

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.



SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Fiscal year ended June 30, 2018
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

Special Revenue Fund

Revenues:
License fees $ 8223
Investment income 208
Total revenues 8,431
Expenditures:
Administration and other transportation projects 4,687
Subsidies to LACMTA 500
Total expenditures 5,187
Net change in fund balance 3,244
Fund balance — beginning of year 18,874
Prior period adjustment (Note 4) 1,458
Fund balance — beginning of year, as restated 20,332
Fund balance — end of year $ 23,576

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.



SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2018

The notes to the basic financial statements are a summary of significant accounting policies and other disclosures

considered necessary for a clear understanding of the accompanying basic financial statements.

Unless otherwise indicated, all dollar amounts are expressed in thousands.

o

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(@)

(b)

(©)

Reporting Entity

The Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies (SAFE) was created in February 1988 pursuant to
California Streets and Highway Code Section 2550 et seq., and is responsible for the operation,
maintenance, and administration of the Los Angeles County Kenneth Hahn Call Box system. Under the
authority of the above section, the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
(LACMTA) is the designated SAFE for Los Angeles County.

As LACMTA’s board is SAFE’s board, SAFE is a component unit of LACMTA and is included in
LACMTA’s financial statements as a blended component unit.

Operations

SAFE is responsible for the implementation, maintenance, operation, and administration of motorist aid
on the network of freeways, highways, and unincorporated county roads within Los Angeles County.
SAFE operates and maintains approximately 625 (not in thousands) call boxes along 436 (not in
thousands) miles of freeways, state highways, and selected county roads in Los Angeles County. SAFE
also funds, operates, and manages the Southern California 511 traveler information system. This system
provides real-time and planned traffic, transit and other related traveler information to the public via the
phone, web and mobile application.

Government-wide Financial Statements

SAFE’s financial statements, prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Satements and Management'’s Discussion and Analysis for
Sate and Local Governments, consist of government-wide statements, including a statement of net
position, statement of activities, and fund financial statements, which provide a more detailed level of
financial information.



SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2018

(d)

(e)

The government-wide financial statements report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the
agency and are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses, including centralized
expenses of a given function or segment, are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that
are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. License fees and investment earnings not
considered program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Fund Accounting

SAFE utilizes fund accounting to report its financial position and the results of its operations. Fund
accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating
transactions related to certain governmental functions or activities. A fund is a separate accounting entity
with a self-balancing set of accounts. Funds are classified into three categories: governmental, proprietary,
and fiduciary.

Governmental funds are used to account for SAFE’s activities. The governmental fund financial
statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Additionally, the SAFE fund is considered a special revenue governmental fund.
Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to
specific purposes. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues
are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, SAFE considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 90 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures
generally are recorded when a liability is incurred and a valid claim is presented.

Fund Balance and Net Position

Restricted fund balance and net position include amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes
stipulated by enabling legislation, by grants, creditors, or by regulations of other governments. SAFE’s
fund balance and net position were classified as restricted as they can only be used in accordance with
the provisions of the California Streets and Highway Code Section 2550 et seq by which the fund was
created.



SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2018
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(h)

(i)
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Budgetary Accounting

Enabling legislation and adopted policies and procedures provide that the SAFE Board of Directors
approve an annual budget. The Board of Directors conducts a public hearing for discussion of the
proposed annual budget prior to adoption of the final budget. Unexpended appropriations lapse at
year-end. The legal level of control is at the fund level, and expenses may not exceed total appropriations
without board approval. By policy, the board has provided procedures for management to make revisions
within operational or project budgets when there is no net dollar impact to total appropriations. The
budget is prepared on a generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) basis.

Cash and I nvestments

SAFE maintains a minimum balance with the Los Angeles County Treasurer’s external investment pool.
Balances in excess of $50 are withdrawn and deposited into the LACMTA internal investment pool. Cash
and investments are reported at fair market value which is the quoted market price.

Receivables

Receivables are net of estimated allowances for uncollectible accounts which are determined based on
past experience. Receivables include license fees due from the State Department of Motor Vehicles. As
of June 30, 2018, SAFE has a receivable for license fees of $698.

Vehicle Registration Fees

Vehicle registration fees revenue is recognized when earned and is generated by a $1 (amount not in
thousands) per each car registered in Los Angeles County, which is collected by the State Department of
Motor Vehicles.

Effects of New GASB Pronouncements

There were no new GASB Pronouncements applicable to SAFE for the year ended June 30, 2018.



SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2018

@

Cash and Investments

The following is a breakdown of SAFE’s cash and investments as of June 30, 2018.

LACMTA investment pool $ 21,870
Los Angeles County investment pool 1,458
Total S 23,328

SAFE’s cash balances are pooled with other LACMTA funds participating in the investment pool by the
LACMTA Treasurer. These funds are subject to withdrawal from the Treasurer’s pool upon demand. The
LACMTA Board of Directors provides regulatory oversight for the LACMTA pool. Each fund maintains an
equity interest in the pool and is presented as cash and investments in the Statement of Net Position. The value
of the position in the investment pool is the same as the value of the pool. The investment pool is not rated for
purposes of evaluating credit risk as of June 30, 2018. Detailed information regarding the LACMTA’s pooled
cash and investments can be found in the LACMTA Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). A copy
of the LACMTA’s CAFR can be obtained by submitting a written request to the Accounting Department, One

Gateway Plaza, Los Angeles, CA 90012-2952.

SAFE’s cash balances are also pooled with other County funds and invested by the Los Angeles County
Treasurer. These funds are subject to withdrawal from the Treasurer’s pool upon demand. The County Board
of Supervisors provides regulatory oversight for the Los Angeles County Investment Pool (LACIP). The value
of the position in the investment pool is the same as the value of the pool. The investment pool is not rated for
purposes of evaluating credit risk as of June 30, 2018. Detailed information regarding the County’s pooled
cash and investments can be found in the County of Los Angeles Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR). A copy of the County’s CAFR can be obtained by submitting a written request to the Los Angeles

County Auditor-Controller, 500 West Temple Street, Room 525, Los Angeles, CA 90012-2766.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Risk Disclosure - an Amendment of GASB Statement

No. 3, certain required disclosures regarding investment policies and practices with respect to the risk
associated with their concentration of credit risk, custodial credit risk, interest rate risk, and foreign currency
risk are discussed in the following paragraphs:
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SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30,2018

(a) Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk associated with a lack of diversification or having too much invested
in a few individual shares. SAFE maintains investment policies that establish thresholds for holdings of
individual securities. SAFE does not have any holdings meeting or exceeding these threshold levels. As of
June 30, 2018, SAFE does not have any investments with more than 5% of the total investments under one
issuer except for obligations of the U.S. government or obligations explicitly guaranteed by the U.S.
government.

(b) Custodial Credit Risk
SAFE has no known custodial credit risk for deposits as financial institutions are required by the California
Government Code to collateralize deposits of public funds by pledging government securities as collateral.
Such collateralization of public funds is accomplished by pooling.

(c) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rate will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
SAFE measures interest rate risk on its short-term investments using the effective duration method. SAFE
maintains policy requiring the average duration of the externally managed short-term investments not to
exceed 150% of the benchmark duration and the average duration of the internally managed short-term
investments not to exceed three years.

(d) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair values of the
cash deposits or investments. As of June 30, 2018, there is no exposure to currency risk as all SAFE cash
deposits and investments are denominated in U.S. dollar currency.
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SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2018
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Significant Commitments

SAFE has entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the Public Transportation Services
Corporation (PTSC), a blended component unit of LACMTA, for PTSC to provide cost reimbursable
administrative support services to SAFE. The MOU will remain in effect until terminated by either party with
a minimum of sixty (60) days written notice.

SAFE had $580 of outstanding contractual commitments as of June 30, 2018 that had not been claimed or
disbursed.

Restatement of Prior Year Financial Statements

Subsequent to the issuance of the June 30, 2017 financial statements, management determined that it had
improperly excluded certain transactions related to its June 30, 2017 financial statements.

The 2017 financial statements excluded $1,458 in License Fees revenues which related to May 2017 and June
2017. Beginning special revenue restricted fund balance and beginning governmental activities restricted net

position have been restated to reflect this adjustment.

The effect of restatement is as follows:

Net position / fund balance at July 1, 2017 $ 18,874
Prior period adjustment 1,458
Net position / fund balance at July 1, 2017, as restated $ 20,332

12
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Crowe LLP

Independent Member Crowe Global

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Directors
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Los Angeles, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities and the special revenue fund of the Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies (SAFE), a
component unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA), as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
SAFE’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 20, 2018. Our
report included an emphasis of matter regarding the beginning net position and beginning fund balance as
of July 1, 2017 being restated to correct a misstatement. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this
matter.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered SAFE's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of SAFE’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of SAFE’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified. We did identify a deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and responses as item 2018-001, that we consider to be a material weakness.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether SAFE's financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

SAFE’s Response to Finding

SAFE'’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Responses. SAFE’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Cvwe LLP

Crowe LLP

Los Angeles, California
December 20, 2018
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SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Schedule of Findings and Responses
Year ended June 30, 2018

FINDINGS RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, WHICH ARE REQUIRED TO BE
REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS

Finding 2018-001 — Accounting for Revenue in the Proper Period (Material Weakness)

Condition: May 2017 and June 2017 license fee revenue, totaling $1,458,262, were improperly accounted
for as fiscal year 2018 revenue.

Criteria: As per GASB Statement No. 33 par. 16, revenue is to be recognized when the underlying
exchange has occurred and the resources are available.

Effect: Prior year revenue and net position were understated and current year revenue was overstated by
$1,458,262. Management corrected this error through a restatement of beginning net position and fund
balance.

Cause: Management had not obtained the appropriate supporting documentation to ensure revenue is
recorded in the proper period. Warrants, which identify the appropriate period the revenue was earned, are
sent directly to the Los Angeles County Treasurer and had not been requested by management. The error
was identified in the current year as management began requesting the warrants for the current year
receipts.

Recommendation: We recommend that management obtain all relevant documentation for revenue to
support the proper application of revenue recognition.

Management's Response: Management has modified their monthly process to include securing the
warrants to identify the applicable month the remittances are recorded.
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TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

LOW CARBON TRANSIT OPERATIONS PROGRAM
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Indanandant Mamhar Crawa (2lnhal

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH RULES AND
REGULATIONS OF THE LOW CARBON TRANSIT OPERATIONS PROGRAM (LCTOP) AND
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

The Board of Directors
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Los Angeles, California

Report on Compliance with Low Carbon Transit Operations Program Guidelines

We have audited the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA) compliance with
the types of compliance requirements described in the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP)
Guidelines adopted by the California Department of Transportation that could have a direct and material
effect on LACMTA’s compliance with the LCTOP Guidelines for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to the LCTOP Guidelines.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for LACMTA’s LCTOP program based on our
audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and the LCTOP Guidelines. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the LCTOP program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about LACMTA’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the LCTOP
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of LACMTA'’s compliance.

Opinion on the LCTOP Guidelines
In our opinion, LACMTA complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements

referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the LCTOP program for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2018.




Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of LACMTA is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered LACMTA'’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the LCTOP program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance on the LCTOP program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance
with the LCTOP program, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of LACMTA’s
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
LCTOP program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of the LCTOP program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of the LCTOP program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may
exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing

of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the LCTOP
Guidelines. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Cvowe LLP

Crowe LLP

Los Angeles, California
December 19, 2018




